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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules’”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no any
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
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Tianjin TEDA Investment Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Chia Tai Land Company Public Shareholders
Holding Co., Ltd. Investment (Beijing) Limited
(“TEDA Holding”) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Land’)
(“Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical”)
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TEDA General Tianjin Yuan Tianjin TEDA Tedahang Cold Tianjin Tianjin Teda Dalian Teda Tianjin Teda Tianjin Port Tianjin Tianxin
Bonded Da Xian Dai Supply Chain Chain Logistics Fengtian International Alps Logistics Alps Logistics Gangwan Automobile
Warehouse Logistics Co., Technology Co., Ltd. Logistics Freight Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. International Inspection
Co,, Ltd. Ltd. Co., Ltd. (“Tedahang”) Co,, Ltd. Forwarding (‘Dalian TEDA (“Tianjin TEDA Automobile Services Co.,
(‘Bonded (“Yuan Da (“TEDA Supply (‘Fengtian Co., Ltd. Alps”) Alps”) Logistics Ltd.
Warehouse”) Logistics”) Chain”) Logistics”) (‘International Co., Ltd. (“Tianxin
Freight (‘Gangwan Inspection”)
Forwarding”) Automobile”)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

RESULTS E

A summary of the consolidated results of the Company and its AAGEKEWNBARG(AEER)EH=
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the five accounting years ended 31 2023412 A31 B It A€ F & 24
December 2023 has been prepared in accordance with International & 247 2 IR BIER B 75 R & X 8l 4R &L a0
Financial Reporting Standards as follows: N

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
2023 & 2022 F 20214 2020 4 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETIT ARBTT ARETIT ARETT

(Restated)
(& E7)
Turnover BEIA 3,649,930 3,301,143 3,069,814 2,880,818 2,716,799
Profit/(loss) before BRETSBIATRE T
income tax (E518) 40,979 80,795 112,660 (54,671) 69,559
Income tax expense FrS iR (4,633) (21,115) (33,352) (27,444) (26,785)
Profit/(loss) for the year &5/ (E18) 36,346 59,680 79,308 (82,115) 42,774
Profit/(loss) T & EAEEF,
attributable to (E18)
Non-controlling interests FF#EA% fE %5 6,568 30,057 45,626 47,271 33,320
Owners of the Company AR &% A A 29,778 29,623 33,682  (129,386) 9,454
Basic earnings/(loss) per FHRERZEF|,(EE)
share (RMB) (AR®IT) 0.08 0.08 0.1 (0.37) 0.03
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EREf

A summary of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at the end of the ANEEEHE2023F 1231 HItAFE
five accounting years ended 31 December 2023 has been prepared sTHEEHIRZ EE G BME JHIZBRE 75
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as ~ TR&EERIHFERNT

follows:

¥

/

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

2023 & 2022 F 20214 2020 4 20194
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETIT ARBTIT ARETIT ARKETT

(Restated)
(gg=5)
Non-current assets EMBEE 995,825 1,051,588 1,066,195 860,953 790,171
Current assets MENVEE 824,963 1,184,549 1,009,988 1,373,243 2,170,017
Total Assets BEERE 1,820,788 2,236,137 2,076,183 2,234,196 2,960,188
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE 109,307 93,436 113,890 143,756 130,146
Current liabilities mENAE 720,205 1,142,696 978,253 1,122,750 1,745,365
Non-controlling interests 42 J% # 7 103,997 125,732 137,196 134,146 118,556
Liabilities and BEELIFERER
non-controlling
interests 933,509 1,361,864 1,229,339 1,400,652 1,994,067
Total equity ey 991,276 1,000,005 984,040 967,690 1,084,677

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 to all shareholders.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Year”), the Group’s
operating income was approximately RMB3,649,930,000 (2022:
RMB3,301,143,000), representing an increase of approximately
10.57% as compared with the corresponding period of the previous
year. Profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB29,778,000 (2022:
RMB29,623,000 (restated)). Total comprehensive income attributable
to the equity holders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB23,794,000 (2022: RMB27,113,000 (restated)). Earnings per
share were approximately RMB0.08 (2022: RMBO0.08).

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total assets and
current assets were approximately RMB1,820,788,000 (2022:
RMB2,236,137,000 (restated)) and approximately RMB824,963,000
(2022: RMB1,184,549,000) respectively, representing a decrease
of RMB415,349,000 and RMB359,586,000 respectively as
compared with 31 December 2022. Net assets attributable to the
parent company and net assets per share at the end of the period
were approximately RMB887,279,000 (2022: RMB874,273,000
(restated)) and approximately RMB2.50 (2022: RMB2.47) respectively,
representing an increase of 1.49% and 1.21% as compared with 31
December 2022.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

REVIEW FOR THE YEAR

In 2023, buoyed by an upward trend in China’s economy, gross
domestic product (the “GDP”) increased 5.2% year-on-year.
Competition pattern of logistics industry has intensified despite
continued improvement of operational environment with overall
industrial rebound. In particular, the decline of fuel vehicles market
has a crucial impact on relevant industries. Adhered to the principle
of high-quality development, the Group made steady progress in
all aspect orienting at revitalization of existing stock, cultivation of
additional stock and improvement of quality.

During the reporting period, a sharp fall on the segment performance
of the Group’s automotive logistics, which was affected by the
decline of fuel vehicles market. At the same time, the Group further
strengthened business expansion of warehousing logistics and
materials procurement, resulting in increase in performance. Such
increase offsets the impact of automotive logistics segment to a
considerable extent. Considering various operational factors, the
overall net profit attributable to the parent company of the Group
recorded a slight increase year-on-year.

Consolidating major businesses

During the Year, in the automobile logistics sector, the Group actively
responded to the impacts of capacity compression in main engine
plants of upstream commodity vehicles resulting from the decline in
fuel vehicle market, and minimized the adverse impacts through team
simplification, process optimization and cost control. In the material
procurement sector, the Group continued to expand its business scale
on the basis of reasonable management and control of business risks,
and both business income and profitability increased during the year.
In the electronic component logistics sector, the Group extensively
searched for stock customers, expanded business opportunities
including multimodal transportation of domestic shipping and
international railways as well as bonded logistics warehouse. In the
cold chain logistics sector, the Group constantly expanded one-stop
cold chain logistics and supervision services. In other warehousing
and logistics businesses, the Group actively expanded, by virtue of
its facilities and resources such as railway routes and heavy container
yards, the logistics businesses of third parties, thus improving its
multimodal transportation capability.
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Reserving projects

During the Year, the Group has completed the preparation and
approval work of the Teda Industrial Park of Green and Intelligent
Logistics Supply Chain (FEZEE 2V HEHEEZE) project,
which is not only the improvement and renovation for low-efficient
stock assets, but also an important shot of the Company for operation
result improvement by deeply engaging its major business of
warehouse logistics area.

Solidifying safety

During the Year, the Group continuously strives to manage and control
the whole process of materials procurement business, and always
implemented the principle of “safety first, prevention focused” for safe
production work, so as to ensure the Company’s steady and safe
operation and firmly safeguard the interests of its shareholders.

PROSPECT AND VISION

Looking ahead to 2024, the environment for China’s development
is still full of strategic opportunities and risks and challenges. The
favorable conditions outweigh the unfavorable factors. The basic trend
of economic recovery and long-term improvement has not changed.
The Group will continue to strengthen its confidence, make full use
of internal and external resource endowments, seize opportunities
and respond to challenges, continuously enhance its independent
operating capabilities and core competitiveness, and strive to improve
the quality and efficiency of the Group’s overall operation and
management.

The Group will integrate physical logistics resources, enhance the
scale of sea-rail combined transportation business, focus on the
core resources of special railway freight lines and storage yards,
extend to the upstream and downstream industrial chains, and
improve comprehensive service income. The Group will improve the
asset efficiency of special railway freight lines, seize major industry
opportunities for commercial vehicle exports, and promote the
construction of integrated transport hub for commercial vehicles and
spare parts.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

The Group will promote the construction of Teda Industrial Park of
Green and Intelligent Logistics Supply Chain project, combine key
project investment work, target at high-quality strategic customers,
and innovate investment models. At the same time, the Group will
continue to pay attention to industry trends and market conditions,
and strive to explore new business growth opportunities.

The Group will improve the level of internal control management,
optimize business processes, realize the common growth of
employees and enterprises, and share business risks and development
results. At the same time, the Group will continue to maintain the
bottom line of capital safety, business safety, and production safety to
promote the healthy development of enterprises.

In 2024, the Group will prioritize high-quality development, adhere to
the business-centric task, and take advantage of the favorable trend of
economic recovery to make overall plans for key tasks in 2024, so as
to realise actual performance to shareholders and society!

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude and great respect to friends from all walks of life who have
cared about and supported the development of the Group throughout
a long period of time, and all staff for their excellent performance!

Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 18 March 2024
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The principal businesses of the Group are logistics and supply chain
services for finished automobiles and components, supply chain and
logistics services for electronic components, materials procurement
and related logistics services, cold chain logistics services and other
services such as warehouse, container yard, supervision, agency and
transportation services. The major customers of the Group include:
Fujian Zhanglong Group Co., Ltd. (B2 ZfEEE AR A7), FAW
Toyota Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. (—/RLHKE)RBR AR,
Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd. (FILEFEME P EEEE
fR /A &]), Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd. (B 77 3RER(FE)
YA PR A &) and China Commerce & Logistics Co., Ltd. (F¥ZER
SERMHBRAR).

During the reporting period, the operating income and segment results
of the supply chain and logistics services for finished automobiles and
components decreased as compared with the corresponding period
of last year, mainly due to the decrease in income and segment results
of Fengtian Logistics, a key enterprise of the Group, driven by the dual
effects of the weak fuel vehicle market, and the significant decrease in
the unit price of logistics service fees per imported vehicles as a result
of the logistic costs reduction of customer. During the reporting period,
as for the materials procurement and related logistics services business
of the Group, the operating income and the segment results increased
compared to the corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the
increase in business volume. The operating income of the warehouse,
transportation supervision businesses increased as compared to the
corresponding period of last year while the segment results increased
as compared to the corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the
increase in results caused by the improvement of management level, cost
reduction and efficiency improvement of the bonded warehouses of the
Company’s subsidiaries. The operating income and operating profit from
supply chain and logistics services for electronic components business
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDT

recorded a decrease as compared to the corresponding period of last
year, mainly because of a decrease in business volume this year as a
result of the intensified market competition. The operating income and
operating profit from cold chain logistics services business recorded a
decrease as compared to the corresponding period of last year, mainly
due to the influence of the policy change on pandemic prevention and
control, the disinfection and testing business of the Class A inspection
warehouse with high gross profit margin stopped, and at the same time,
the regional market competition became more intense, resulting in a
continuous decline in business volume and profit margin.

Supply Chain and Logistics Services for Finished Automobiles
and Components

During the reporting period, the operating income of supply chain
and logistics services for finished automobiles and components
amounted to approximately RMB1,222,058,000, representing a
decrease of RMB115,603,000 or 8.64% as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, while the operating results
amounted to approximately RMB18,430,000, representing a decrease
of RMB64,895,000 or 77.88% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

Materials Procurement and Related Logistics Services

During the reporting period, the operating income from the materials
procurement and related logistics services amounted to approximately
RMB2,350,624,000, representing an increase of RMB442,766,000
or 23.21% as compared with the corresponding period of last
year, while the loss of operating results amounted to approximately
RMB18,537,000, representing a decrease of RMB4,448,000 or
19.35% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Warehouse, Supervision, Agency and Other Services

During the reporting period, other services such as warehouse,
container yard, supervision, agency and transportation services
recorded an operating income of approximately RMB77,248,000,
representing an increase of RMB21,624,000 or 38.88% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, while the operating results
amounted to approximately RMB19,904,000, representing an increase
of RMB5,822,000 or 41.34% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

Supply Chain and Logistics Services for Electronic
Components (Conducted Through Investments in Joint
Ventures)

During the reporting period, the performance of supply chain
and logistics services for electronic components business of the
Group’s joint ventures recorded a decrease as compared with
the corresponding period of last year. During the reporting period,
the business recorded a net operating profit of approximately
RMB47,535,000, representing a decrease of RMB21,852,000 or
31.49% as compared with the corresponding period of last year,
while the profit contribution was approximately RMB23,333,400,
representing a decrease of RMB11,001,000 or 32.04% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year.

Cold Chain Logistics Services (Conducted Through
Investments in Joint Ventures)

During the reporting period, the performance of cold chain logistics
services of the Group’s joint ventures recorded a decrease as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The business
recorded a net operating profit of approximately RMB17,897,000,
representing a decrease of RMB12,450,000 or 41.03% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year, while the profit contribution
was approximately RMB10,738,000, representing a decrease of
RMB7,470,000 or 41.083% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES WD

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Operating income

For the year ended 31 December 2023, operating income of the
Group was RMB3,650 million, representing an increase of RMB349
million or 10.57% as compared to RMB3,301 million for the
corresponding period of last year. The increase in operating income
is mainly attributable to an increase in operating income of materials
procurement and related logistics services as compared to the
corresponding period of last year.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the cost of sales of the Group
was RMB3,589 million, representing an increase of RMB420 million or
13.25% as compared to RMB3,169 million in the corresponding period
of last year. For the year ended 31 December 2023, overall gross profit
margin of the Group was 1.67% which was 2.32 percentage points
lower than the corresponding period of last year. The main reason for
the decrease in gross profit margin was lower gross profit from the
Company’s automotive logistics segment as a result of the impact of
the market environment.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2023 amounted to
RMB52,436,000, representing a decrease of RMB4,021,000 or 7.12%
as compared to RMB56,457,000 in the corresponding period of last
year.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs during 2023 amounted to RMB21,339,000,
representing an increase of RMB637,000 or 3.08% as compared to
RMB20,702,000 in the corresponding period of last year. The Group
will improve the efficiency of capital utilisation and reduce the overall
finance costs.

Taxation expenses

The taxation expenses of the Group for 2023 were RMB4,633,000,
representing a decrease of RMB16,482,000 or 78.06% as compared
to RMB21,115,000 (restated) in the corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net change in fair value of equity investments through
comprehensive income

The net change in fair value of equity investment of the Group for 2023
was RMB-5,984,000, representing a decrease of RMB3,474,000 as
compared to RMB-2,510,000 in the corresponding period of last year,
which was mainly attributable to the significant decrease of the net
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income of the Group.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The share of results of joint ventures and associates of the Group
for 2023 was RMB26,592,000, representing a decrease of
RMB28,343,000 or 51.59% as compared to RMB54,935,000 in
the corresponding period of last year, which was mainly due to the
significant decrease in the operating results of Tianjin TEDA Alps,
Tedahang, Tianxin Inspection, and especially Gangwan Automobile, as
compared to the corresponding period of last year.

Profit for the year and profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to the equity holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2023, total profit for the period
amounted to RMB30,362,000, representing a decrease of RMB
26,808,000 or 46.89% as compared to RMB57,170,000 (restated) in
the corresponding period of last year. Profit for the year attributable
to the equity holders of the Company amounted to RMB29,778,000,
representing an increase of RMB155,000 or 0.52% as compared to
RMB29,623,000 (restated) in the corresponding period of last year.
Total comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of
the Company was RMB23,794,000, decreased by RMB3,319,000
or 12.24% as compared to RMB27,113,000 (restated) in the
corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES WD

DIVIDEND

The Board proposes the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.02 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (corresponding period of
2022: RMBO0.03 per share).

The proposal shall be subject to the approval at the Company’s annual
general meeting of 2023. Information about the date of the annual
general meeting and arrangements on closure of register of members
will be announced in due course.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Capital structure

The Company completed the conversion of 256,068,800 domestic
unlisted shares into H shares on 26 October 2023. Save as disclosed
above, for the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no change in
the capital structure of the Group. The share capital of the Company
comprised only ordinary shares.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the balance of borrowings of the Group was
RMB351,909,000 (31 December 2022: RMB285,175,000 ).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2023, the ratio of total liabilities to total assets of
the Group was 45.56% (31 December 2022: 55.28% (restated)). The
gearing ratio (ratio of loans (including borrowings and lease liabilities) to
total equity) of the Group was 39% (31 December 2022: 34%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s investment properties of
RMB315,000,000, property, plant and equipment of RMB6,308,000
and bank deposits of RMB56,015,000 were pledged to secure
borrowings and bills payables granted to the Group.

Exchange loss or gain

All operating revenues and expenses of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group has no significant investments outside of Mainland China.
The Group, however, may be exposed to certain extent of foreign
currency exchange loss or gain mainly because Fengtian Logistics
of the Group, has business denominated in United States Dollar and
Japanese Yen. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group had
an exchange gain of RMB452,000 after offsetting the exchange gains
with exchange losses.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, the Group had no significant investments and did not
devise future plans for material investments or capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,079 employees
(including dispatched labors and employees) (31 December 2022:
1,123 employees).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEES WD

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remunerations of the employees of the Group shall be determined
with reference to the market rate, and the performance, qualification
and experience of the relevant employees. Also, a discretionary
bonus based on individual performance during the year would be
distributed as a reward for the contributions made by the employees
to the Company. Other employee benefits include pension insurance,
unemployment insurance, labour injury insurance, medical insurance
and housing fund.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and experience, to the Board for determination.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - #HEHED

ABOUT THIS ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group” or “we” and
“us”) are principally engaged in the provision of logistics and supply
chain services for finished automobiles and components materials
procurement and related logistics services, cold chain logistics and
other services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). As an
enterprise that strives to operate its business with the purpose of
creating long-term value for all, the Group remains committed to
adopting environmental, social, and economic perspectives in strategy
planning and policy execution, in constant pursuit of harnessing
technology evolution, eco-friendly measures and responsible practices
to respond to the challenges that abound in business landscapes.

The Group is pleased to present this environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”), which demonstrates the Group’s
approach and performance in terms of environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) and sustainable development for the year ended
31 December 2023 (“2023"). For the corporate governance section,
please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report” in the Group’s
annual report 2023.

As for now, multiple nations pledged for a series of environmental
protection commitments, including but not limited to the carbon
neutrality targets. In line with the calls of the central government of the
PRC, the Group swiftly responded and implemented effective policies
to integrate the concepts of ESG into its day-to-day operations.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - dEREXERRE

Reporting Boundary

Adopting the operational control approach and adhering to the
Materiality Principle, the Group includes in the Report its major
business contributing to the majority of its annual revenue or
businesses of which the Group holds more than 50% shareholding.
Believing that these major operations caused material social and
environmental impacts that concern its stakeholders, the Group
decided to disclose the following businesses operating in Tianjin, the
PRC in the Report:

e the logistics and supply chain services for finished automobiles
and components (provision of logistics services and supply
chain management, i.e. planning, storage and transportation
management for finished automobiles and components);

e the materials procurement and related logistics services (sale of
raw materials to customers being principally trading companies
and provision of related services of transportation, management,
storage, warehouse supervision and management); and

e the cold chain logistics business.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Reporting Principles

In strict compliance with the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the Group has ensured that the
Report is in alignment with the following reporting principles:

Materiality:

By gathering the feedback from various stakeholder groups about
their concerns, interests and expectations in terms of the Group’s
sustainable development, material ESG issues of the Group are
identified and endorsed by it for future strategy development. For
details of the materiality assessment, please refer to the section named
“Stakeholder Engagement”.

Quantitative:

The reporting principle of quantitative was applied and demonstrated
through the disclosure of measurable key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) under the following sections. To ensure that readers can grasp
a better understanding of the Group’s sustainability performance,
detailed disclosure in measurable format can be found in several
performance tables. The standards, methods, assumptions, tools,
and conversion factors used for measuring the KPIs in the Report are
explained in the corresponding context, where applicable.

Balance:

Upholding the good practice of transparent disclosure, the Group
conforms to the principle of balance when preparing the Report
SO as to describe and indicate to the readers both the outstanding
achievements and room for improvement in terms of the Group’s
sustainability performance in 2023, with an aim to avoid selections,
omissions, or presentation formats that may inappropriately influence
the decision or judgment of the Report reader.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - dEREXERRE

Consistency:

To facilitate meaningful self and lateral comparison, the Group has
adopted consistent methodologies for data collection and reporting
framework over the years. If there is any change in the reporting
scope and calculation method, which may affect the comparison
with previous reports, the Group will explain the corresponding data.
The reporting scope of 2023 remains consistent as compared to
the reporting scope for the year ended 31 December 2022 (“2022”),
details of which please refer to the section named “Reporting
Boundary” above.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS
Governance Structure

The Group has set up an independent robust governance structure
to guarantee that the ESG governance is consistent with its business
strategy and integrated ESG management into its business operation
and decision-making. Bearing ultimate responsibility for all ESG-
related issues, policies and the reporting of the Group, the board of
directors (the “Board”) of the Company takes the lead and oversees
the execution of the Group’s sustainability strategy in a top-to-bottom
manner. The Board selects qualified members with appropriate
skills, experience, knowledge and perspectives required in light of
the relevant ESG issues. In order to better manage the Group’s ESG
performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board shall hold
meeting at least once a year to review and identify the materiality,
risks and opportunities of the Group’s ESG issues, and review their
performance and progress against ESG-related targets. In addition
to regular inspection and evaluation of the implementation of the
Group’s environmental and social responsibility system, the Board is
also responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems, as well as approving disclosures in the
Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group has established an ESG Working Group (the “Working
Group”) responsible for implementing specific ESG issues. The
Working Group is composed of the management from subdivisions
with expertise. All members, with a clear labor division, are responsible
for the execution, monitoring and control of the ESG-related work of
each of the business unit. The Working Group cooperates with an
independent third party to collect and analyze ESG data, monitor and
evaluate each department’s ESG performance, keep track of and
review the progress made against each department’s ESG-related
targets, ensure compliance with ESG-related laws and regulations,
and assist in conducting materiality assessment and preparing the
Report. The Working Group is required to hold a meeting at least once
a year to assess the effectiveness of existing policies and procedures
and develop appropriate solutions to improve the overall performance
of ESG policies. It is also required to report its findings, decisions and
recommendations to the Board at least once a year.

Management Approach and Strategy

Risk management is an essential part in ESG issues, especially for
those risks related to climate change and environmental regulations
established by the government. Committed to integrating its ESG
management approach into enterprise risk management system,
the Group has carefully studied and implemented the measures and
emergency plans built by local governments, aiming to better identify
and address any potential, unknown or actual risks.

To identify and better understand the Group’s ESG-related risks, as
well as the latest update on ESG laws and regulations that may have
significant impact on the Group’s business, the Board maintains
stable connection with the authorities, engages external experts
and holds regular communication with internal advisory groups to
ensure that important information is shared and passed around the
organization. Meanwhile, when setting up and deciding the long-
term development strategy for its business, the Group is particularly
concerned and prioritized considerations including the government
support, requirements and restrictions on the logistic industry, market
environment for its main business segment, and most importantly,
the environmental impacts caused during the logistics operations.
In addition, the Group also integrates the concerns and interests
of stakeholders reflected in the result of its materiality assessment,
when creating, reviewing and modifying its strategy to ensure a
comprehensive and balanced business plan that is inclusive of
opinions from different perspectives.
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Goals and Targets

To steadily advance various tasks and stay in line with the overall
planning of the regional and national units, the Group formulates
long-term plans attentively in undertaking its corporate social
responsibilities. Recognizing that energy consumption, including but
not limited to the fossil fuels consumed for vehicle transportation
and electricity consumed for warehouse storage, is one of the most
significant environmental impacts of the logistic industry, the Group
is dedicated to control its energy consumption per thousand square
meter, while reducing the dependence of business operation on
resources consumption.

The Group sets internal ESG KPIs to reduce its negative environmental
impacts to the greatest extent. In particular, KPIs include the electricity
consumption per thousand square meter and the fuel consumption for
vehicles transportation per thousand square meter etc. These KPls are
reviewed and monitored by the Board through the supervision and the
regular report of the Management, while they are also disclosed in the
annual ESG report of the Group to let its stakeholders scrutinize the
performance and progress of the Group.

Message from the Board

Dear valued stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Report to
demonstrate the Group’s improving sustainable development
performance to date. The Board has taken up an overall responsibility
for all relevant ESG issues of the Group and has also delegated a
working team to be responsible for implementing the ESG-related
issues and works.

Building smart industries

The Group maintains its stable communication with suppliers by
signing memorandums, using digital tools and other means. We
will also endeavor to overcome all operational difficulties in order to
cater and maintain our service reliability. In addition to the exploration
of alternative logistics solutions including the sea-rail combined
transportation, we have also been enhancing our support to the
subsidiaries in developing new businesses and building new facilities
and upgrading to intelligent transformation.
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Offering green business

We have closely linked our development targets in seeking
sustainability with the ambitious national carbon neutrality goal. We
improve energy efficiency in the field of cold chain logistics by a
series of measures to reduce energy consumption, such as adjusting
shift schedule, optimizing the evaporator defrosting process, and
upgrading compressor and evaporative cooling operations based
on outdoor temperatures and inventory. At the same time, we keep
exploring the opportunities to adopt renewable fuels, which in order
to continuously improve the energy consumption rate and reduce
the carbon emissions so as to minimize environmental impacts. For
more efficient assessment of environmental performance and review
of the effectiveness of policies, we have set quantitative environmental
targets and regularly evaluate their progress to specify phased
improvement measures.

Creating sustainable future

As we see opportunities and challenges coexist in the continuous
recovery of the PRC and the world, we are steadfast in facing the
challenges and we will seize the opportunities to exploring greener
solutions to logistics chains and furthering our collaboration with
the customers and suppliers to jointly achieve open, inclusive and
sustainable development..

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
sincere gratitude to all stakeholders, staff members and business
partners for their dedication and unlimited support to the Group in its
ongoing transition towards sustainable development.

Yang Weihong
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 18 March 2024
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that promoting stakeholder engagement and
being responsive to their concerns is important for long-term success
of the Group. As such, regular, open and constructive dialogues with
its key stakeholders through communication channels listed below are
conducted to understand their expectations, aiming to advance the
sustainable development of the Group.

Stakeholders Expectations and Communication Channels

RHEasR

AEERE  REFNESEY B IRERH

EMFERLRELOE  HAKEERGE

HXWEREE - Filt - AKEEB T

KPR EBRETHEETIERNE

Lﬂ’/lﬁﬂ&ﬂ@‘“’l%ﬁﬁ%jﬂﬁﬁxﬁ,ﬁﬁ
C B AEBENASERR

FOERERBBERE

Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Communication Channels
Government and o Compliance with laws ° Supervision on the compliance
regulatory authorities and regulations with local laws and regulations

° Fulfilment of tax obligations

BRREEER o  EERFEEM
o  BITHMER
Shareholders ° Return on investments
° Business ethics
° Information disclosure
=R e KEMOH
s MXEBRE
. AREE
Employees o Compensation and benefits
o Occupational health and safety
(“OHSH)

o Training and development
opportunities

(=] o FHBHREA
o BEERER
(fH&%fi}i/\ﬁEJ )

o  FIIREREE

° Fulfilment of statutory reporting
requirements

o  EEBETHMIIERERNE

s BITEEBRWMIRTE

° Regular reports and
announcements

° General meetings

° Corporate website

s THHREEASEH

e BEAE®

e NARIMEUA

° Performance appraisals

° Regular meetings and trainings
° Emails and notice boards

o Team building activities

o EHGHE
o EHEHRE
¢ BBRERRK
. EHRRED
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BRI HEREMRERES

Stakeholders
B6hE

Expectations and Concerns

MR X R

Communication Channels

BERE

Customers

'F

Suppliers

HER

General public

o Production and service quality
assurance

° Protection of customers’ privacy
and rights

s HERBRBEERE
s REEFLENERN

° Fair and open procurement
° Mutual beneficial cooperation
° Long-term business relationship

o RFRAFNKRE
e ENATE
o RHIXBBE

o Involvement in communities

° Business ethics

o Environmental protection
awareness

e ZHEMREH

s WEBER

e  IREBREEH

° Customers’ satisfaction surveys

° Customer service hotline
and emails

° Face-to-face meetings and site
visits

s EFmEBEHRAE

s EFBRBAZNEL

e MHYHEEZNEMED

o Open tender for key suppliers

° Contracts and agreements

o Suppliers’ satisfaction
assessment

° Telephone discussions

o Face-to-face meetings and
onsite visits

o NHIBE

s  AANWME

o  HERWMEEE

e EHEEH

s HYEMEZLEMER

° Public welfare activities
° Corporate website

SR>
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Materiality Assessment

The Group conducts regular materiality assessment, to identify its
stakeholders’ main concerns and material interests for response
and reporting. The Group believes that the goal and direction of
sustainable development should be long-term and continuous, while
the implementation of relevant policies should be sustained over time
to ensure their effectiveness. As such, the Board decided to continue
its efforts on addressing the risks and opportunities under the material
topics that were reflected in its materiality assessment, so as to lead
the Group to move towards sustainable development in a consistently
effective manner.

To ensure the accuracy and objectivity of evaluation, the Group
engaged an independent third party in conducting an online materiality
assessment survey. Taking a stepwise approach, a list of ESG issues
were first identified through taking reference of domestic and foreign
reporting guidelines as well as the market concerns of sustainable
development. Relevant internal and external key stakeholders were
then invited to provide inputs for evaluation and formulation of the
materiality matrix as below, which was submitted to the Board for
subsequent review.

Materiality Matrix
EEMER

L
@
=

it

SIGNIFICANCE TO THE STAKEHOLDERS
HEHENERN

®

Low
{li

HEE REAMENEEN

SIGNIFICANCE TO THE ECONOMY, ENVIRONMENT AND SOCIETY

BB

AR B T AR AR A
9% £ ERTEAREAR S - LEH
Bl RS - ARERATHAERENE
BRAMEREN 58 AR
SITARRIBUR « AR AR - Rk -
R AL 5 ) 8 B TP TR
MEAHE TR RS - 47384
EEEEA AN TRERR -

SEERFANERIEMETBRNE - AEEE
PRV E-TETERERUNERSE -
REERFEEN TR - BE2EEARINE
SREAARTSHAIRFEEROEE -
E—MRE HELELRERFE - BB
AEAAANEBERFDERHEER - UF
AT TEREREE - WRERE
RTEFGETESL -

High

k|
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Environmental protection

Employment and

labour practices

Operation management

Social responsibility

RERE ERERSE TEH EEEE HEER
1. Air and greenhouse gas 5. Employee remuneration 10. Procurement 17, Community
(“GHG”) emissions and benefits practices investment
1. RRSFMAAERE 5 (ESFHMERF 10. KBRS 17. #ERE
(DRERE D EHEMN
2. Waste treatment 6.  Diversity of 11.  Supplier risk
employees management
2. EBEDRRE 6. BIZ%nik 1. HEERRERE
3. Resources consumption 7.  OHS 12.  Service quality
3. ERHA 7. BEREERS 12. RKEE
4,  Climate-related risks 8.  Employee 13. Safety of goods
management development
and training
4. RIERRER 8. [EEEERKEI 13. &P%a
9.  Preventing child and 14. Protection of
forced labour customers’ privacy
9. WLEREIX 14. BEELRRE
g T
15.  Anti-corruption policies
and whistle-blowing
procedure
15, REFSBERBRTIE
16. Critical incident risk
responsiveness
16. EE=ERELHE
According to the outcome, the Group identified four ESG issues of the 1RIE# R AEBBE T4 ESZEENIR
most significance, shown as follows: B HegkEAREE " 2AIRINGT

13.

16.

12.

14.

Safety of goods

Critical incident risk responsiveness

Service quality

Protection of customers’ privacy

12. lRisE=

14, BEELERE
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The review outcomes continue to inform the evolution of the Group’s
ESG commitments, strategies and targets, as well as the prioritization
of its assets allocation so as to align with stakeholders’ expectations.

Sustainable Development Goals

Supporting the United Nations SDGs, the Group believes that
businesses play an important role in contributing to this global agenda
for sustainable development. To this end, the Group conducts an
evaluation on its stakeholders’ opinions on sustainability and aligns its
business and sustainability priorities with the SDGs, so as to identify
SDGs which are of greatest relevance to the Group where it can best
contribute to. According to the results, the Group identifies SDGs 3, 9
and 13 as relevant to its overall sustainability agenda and areas where
it can positively contribute to.

Goal 3. Good Health and Well-Being

To promote the well-being for employees, the Group attaches great
importance in the daily safeguarding of OHS during operations. By
formulating and implementing the relevant occupational health and

AR AT A
@&E/Eﬂ%
BRERTHHNER -
HASBIR¥F — B o

HERESIZAKEERE &
CREMERUANEERE
PAE H B 4 Y

IHEERER
AEBEXFBABEAFEERARER - IR
REEAEERHRABERRBEMETRT
REESREM - Bl AREHERND
%JiﬁEE’JT SEERBAE LETHE
HEXBRAFEEREMERRFE
%E%): BRRER{H B UHETEAERER

*H%@E’\JTF?‘“?‘EEF W I I A B
BBt - BRER - AEEETEAREER

%iﬁ“?ﬁ)?e ZERAEBENIFEEEBIZE
3 9Kk13 UREREMRIEL ERMNE
E4E L -

B1R3 - RAFIESE A 754t

RITEZEE TR AEEREERN
H %%W%@Lﬁqﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ%%@@éﬁi?
Z o EBRIELEEABRERERL S

safety policies, the Group aims to achieve zero workplace accidents — EUE - $'§l g EEDNT T ESHBMER
and ensure the smooth running of the business. ETGNERHETT o
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Goal 9: Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure

The Group is committed to improving energy efficiency and reducing
GHG emissions by optimizing transportation plans, changing
transportation methods, and improving transportation technology.
Moreover, in order to create new value, the Group has upgraded its
old assets one after another to enhance the hardware level of the
industrial park and promote high quality development.

Goal 13: Climate Action

The Group closely follows the PRC’s “30-60 dual carbon goal”, and
comprehensively examines physical and transformation risks brought
by climate change. Through the formulation of the “Emergency
Management Measures” ( ([EEE 2 #)%) ), the Group has
strengthened the training of management and drivers to improve their
ability to deal with relevant risks and ensure the safety of the Group’s
personnel and property.

Stakeholders Feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, we welcome stakeholders’
feedback, especially on topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and performance.
Readers are also welcomed to share their views with the Group at
investor@tbtl.cn.

BRI HEREMRERES
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ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group believes that green operation is essential for the
corporate and crucial for creating long-term value for the
community in which it operates. This section mainly discloses the
Group’s policies, practices and quantitative data on emissions,
use of resources, environment and natural resources, and climate
change in 2023. The Group has formulated the “Environmental
Policy” ( GREEER) ) to achieve its goals in reducing emissions
and conserving resources.

Environmental Targets

In order to ensure that we can effectively implement a sustainable
business model, the Group has set a number of environmental
targets based on its development direction and strategic
guidelines, and closely monitors and regularly reviews progress
of the targets. In order to manage environmental targets more
efficiently and review their progress regularly, with 2022 as
the base year, the Group set new targets in 2022 which to be
achieved by the year ending 31 December 2027 (“2027"), details
are as follows:

RIR o5& 1

AEBERE SEEEHAXRER
B2 NRAMEHEAERBE
BENEERE AHETERBEAKEE
2023 F AR - BIR(EM
REMRAERIA MR IRE (K
KEBORELERE NEEDH
EORBEBR) - WEREER D
SRR B IR E R B AR -

BREER

AERBEMENE ST FE
MHOEERN  AEEEREBHEE
&5 [0 M BL B 75 81 5] 3 % (EIR 45 B
2 BYEERTHESEENE
BRERL RESRERREEEZER
TFHIRBEEER - NEBEMR2022F
RIS T LA2022 F BEEF - RNEH
£2027%12 A31 HIEFE (12027
FNEREMNBE  FBEHOT

Aspects Targets Progress
=] BE ER
Air emissions The emissions of air pollutants per thousand square meter will be maintained or In progress
reduced.
&SRB R SR T TP T RER SR DEERE - HEITH
GHG emissions The total GHG emissions per thousand square meter will be maintained or reduced. In progress
BEREEHER RS EET T RORERBENE - AT
Non-hazardous Since the wastewater discharge is estimated based on water consumption, the In progress
wastewater performance at this level will be followed up according to the water consumption
target.
EEREK BRI ENFKEMESE - dUSRAKE RRELEERE - HETTH
Non-hazardous The total non-hazardous waste discharge per thousand square meter will be In progress
waste maintained or reduced.
EEREEY R RTT P RBESEEDETENE - HEITH
Energy consumption The total energy consumption per thousand square meter will be maintained or In progress
reduced.
BEIRHFE A MRS SR R T T RRERAEEFES - AT
Water The total water consumption per thousand square meter will be maintained or In progress
reduced.
X B RREST IS KRR - 1T
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Emissions

In 2023, the Group was in compliance with all applicable legal
and regulatory requirements regarding environmental protection,
and there was no violation of any laws and regulations that
are significant to the Group and related to air emissions, GHG
emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, including but not limited
to “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China”( {F#E AR KEAEIRIFREL) ), “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”( {F#E AR £FMBIKR5EP85) ), “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Water
Pollution”( (R ZE AR X FBE KT EHAE) ), “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes”( & A E HE E
BEREVD S A IRIBDIAYA) ) and “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Conserving Energy”( {1 #E AR EMBIEILIEERE) ).
The Group’s emissions are set out as below:

BRI HEREMRERES

BER

R 2023F - NEBEETHAERK
RRZAEMEERR BUEER
ERTMERERN  REREH
B AR BE R R EA R E A
BEEBEZMABNEHAEENS
BERKERER  BRETRR
(PEARAMBERFEREE) (H
EARAXMBEARRIZRERED)
(R EE AR FAMBKTRBRZE)
(R EE AR FMEDE B8 RE VD)5 R IR
BIaE ) R o AR AN B &6 40 Bk
OR) e AEBNHREHINNAT ¢

2023 2022
2023F 20208
Amount Intensity'  Amount  Intensity’
Category of g8 BE B ZE
emissions HHER Unit Bfy (Unit/000 m3) (Unit000 )
(Bfi/FE5K) (Bi/FEAX)
Air emissions? BRHFR 80, Ralh kg T 204 0.02 271 0.03
NO, REltm kg T 17,1794 209 17,8832 230
PM B kg % 1,237.2 15 12929 1.7
GHG emissions’ ~ BEREER®  Scope #81(8%AR) tC0,e Eg
(Direct emissions) (1C0g) (WM-EkEs]) 33087 41 37834 49
Scope 2 (Energy SE2(RMENN)  1COg hEg
indirect emissions) 5,128.4 63 72156 9.3
Scope 3 (Other ES(EpREAN) 100  M-EfkEs
indirect emissions) 103.9 0.1 117.0 0.2
Total (Scope 1,2 &3 B (&E1219) {008 hEe 86260 105 11,1160 143
Non-hazardous BERA Wastewater Bk me IHR
wastewater* 28,5104 348 65,789.0 84.5
Non-hazardous BERENS General household waste — —RAEVERIR tonnes %
waste® 648.5 08 431 05
Hazardous waste ~ HEHEEY Solid waste EREED tonnes I 51 6.2x10° 66 85x10°
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Notes:

In 2023, the total floor area of the Group was approximately
820,347.9 m? (2022: approximately 778,847.4 m?). This data is
used to calculate intensity data.

The calculation method of air emissions refers to “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” ( {Z{AEHIRIE - (L2 R EATRS — M8k
Z IRIRRARAANURIZEIRIES]) ) issued by the Stock Exchange.

GHG emission data are presented in CO,e, with reference
to (including but not limited to) the “GHG Protocol Corporate
Accounting and Reporting Standard” ( CREREREETE &
EotHIHAEITE) ) issued by the World Resources Institute and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the “How
to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” ( {ZI{eEFEIRIE - L2 NEAME — Mk
= RIBRRAEBUEIZMEIRIE S| ) ) issued by the Stock Exchange,
the global warming potential value stated in the “Fifth Assessment
Report” ( { BBFRRFHERE) ) and the “2006 Intergovernmental
Panel on Climate Change Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories” ( {2006F BN RIEE (L EFIZ 82K BAERE
JEEHER) ) issued by the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate
Change, the “Notice on the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse
Gas Emissions Reporting by Power Generation Industry for 2023-
2025” ( (BARHEF2023-2025F (P R ERBHIMBREEIEEH
T{EHIEAN) ) and “Tianjin Carbon Emission Accounting Guide
for Other Industries (Trial)” ( (R 3ET EM TPz EERm (3
77) ) ) issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of PRC
in 2023 and the carbon emission calculator of the International
Civil Aviation Organization.

Most of the wastewater generated by the Group is discharged
into the municipal sewage system. Wastewater discharges from
each segment are assumed to be equal to consumption, except
for segments which are able to obtain complete wastewater
discharges records.

General household waste refers to municipal solid waste,
which were centrally processed by designated institutions. The
Group also only recycled approximately 0.1 tonnes of waste
paper in 2023 (the total amount of waste recycled in 2022 was
approximately 0.01 tonnes).

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

G

R20284F  AEBMBIEEEIA
% £820,347.9F 75 K (2022 4F :
A/ 778,847.4F 5 K) o HEUEA
Rt EEEEUE -

BERBE A H I A S BRE S P 3
I EFHIRE e RER
HE - REBREVER
FERIES])

BE R EE R Ak E
2% W2REEETRAR
BRMEMEREARUFERRETR
BESHENCREREREHT
g rESHERERE) B
FTes i KN 23R 35 - L8 R
BAWME —MitR—  RIBEAREN
HIZERIES)  BFEREZL
BMIE B2 %M A(E AR R
SV R RE R E - (2006 F
BFEREZEEEMZESRRA
EREFERME) PRERIRE
#2023 4F % 5 HIC [ 7 14 4T 2023-
2025 F ¥ BERBEHEMREE
BAEBIERBN) (CREMHEM
TEREMZEERGEITIIAR
HE R ARSI GTE RS -

RE B E A M KRR D BEAKIGHE AT
BUBKEEE » Br 7 AT EE AR RERE 7K
PERE LSRN D #RLASN - EoAth 7y &P
MEKEERENRESINERE

— MR R BN ER T E BERE Y -
T HEEPERE - AEENTR
2023 £ [@] U #90.1 R B 4% (2022 £F
BEARAARI U E 404 0.0118) »



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Air and GHG Emissions

The exhaust gas generated by the Group included SO,, NO,
and PM, mainly from the fuel consumption of vehicles used for
transportation purposes and the fuel consumption of forklifts
in workplaces. In 2023, the Group’s total air emissions slightly
decreased compared to 2022.

The Group’s GHG emissions mainly came from the diesel and
gasoline consumption of automobiles and forklifts, natural gas
consumption for heating (Scope 1), purchased electricity and
steam consumption (Scope 2), waste paper landfills and business
air travel (Scope 3). The total GHG emissions of the Group
decreased by about 22.4% as compared with 2022. In response
to the country’s goal of achieving carbon neutrality in 2060 and
in order to achieve internal environmental targets, the Group
is dedicated to monitoring and controlling its direct emissions
from vehicle use for transportation through relevant approaches,
including but not limited to avoid unnecessary transportation by
utilizing appropriate logistical planning, arranging transportation
time schedule, maximizing loading rates and transportation
efficiency; adopt more environmentally smart transportation
modes and develop new transportation combinations in support
of the reformation of emission reduction standards and fuel
efficiency standards; and improve and develop innovative
technologies for transportation such as more efficient alternative
energy sources and upgraded modern fleet.

Further, drivers are encouraged and required to maintain good
driving habits, including turning off idling engines when stopping
and not rushing to brake and accelerate, so as to reduce fuel
loss, thereby lowering air emissions. Drivers are also required
to ensure all vehicles are in good conditions in order to improve
energy efficiency and reduce fuel consumption. Other measures
to save electricity and heat energy will be further explained in the
section headed “Use of Resources”. In order to reduce GHG
emissions from business travel, the Group advised its employees
to reduce unnecessary business air travel and work together
through online communication software as much as possible.
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Understanding that refrigerants used in cold storage (such
as CFCs and HCFCs) will impose threat to ozone depletion
and global warming, the Group adopts liquid ammonia as an
alternative refrigerant and makes certain the proper preservation
of refrigerant in storage tanks, compressors, evaporative
condensers and other refrigeration equipment, and purposely
separates the refrigerating station from other zones, so as to
reduce the hazard caused by refrigerant leakage.

Wastewater and Solid Waste

The wastewater discharged by the Group mainly included
household sewage generated from daily operations, and no large
amount of hazardous wastewater was discharged. In 2023, the
wastewater discharge of the Group decreased by approximately
56.7% compared with 2022.

To better manage its wastewater and prevent the contamination
of natural water bodies from its potential leakage, the Group
installs professional containers for grease separation and storage.
Meanwhile, a professional agency that is approved by the local
environmental protection bureau is appointed for examining
and supporting sewage treatment on an annual basis, thus
minimizing the Group’s environmental impact. The Group has
also taken effective measures to reduce water consumption in
daily operations, the details are further explained in the section
headed “Use of Resources”.

The solid waste generated by the Group was mainly general
household waste and a small amount of hazardous solid waste
generated from daily operations. In 2023, the discharge of non-
hazardous waste of the Group increased as compared to 2022,
while hazardous waste decreased as compared to 2022. The
non-hazardous waste generated by the Group was collected
and disposed of by a professional third party after classification.
Meanwhile, the hazardous waste arose from operation was
properly handled according to the Group’s internal procedure,
and qualified third parties were assigned for collection and
disposal. In realizing its targets, the Group embraces the concept
of “3R Principle — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” and actively
instils the recycling principle into its daily operations.
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Noise

In 2023, the noise of the business activities of the Group were
mainly from the operations of machinery in the warehouse
operating zone, vehicle transportation and loading and unloading
practices, as well as other engineering construction sources.
Geared toward lowering its noise impacts, the Group establishes
internal policies and assigns dedicated personnel to carry out
daily inspections of the equipment, in order to spot and repair
any irregularities timely. Meanwhile, the Group also installs noise
barriers and explosion-proof doors as well as windows between
the refrigerating station and the control room in accordance with
the “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise” ( {# A RN
BlIRIBIRE S 2B 47%) ) and other relevant national regulations.

Use of Resources

To effectively manage resource consumption, the Group
has established and monitored reasonable KPIs to regulate
procurement behavior and resource consumption, so as to
continuously improve the efficiency of resource use.

In 2023, the primary resources consumed by the Group were
diesel, gasoline, natural gas, electricity, steam, water, packaging
materials and paper. The Group’s total use of resources by
category is set out as follows:
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2023 2022
20235 20226

Amount Intensity Amount Intensity
#E BE g= BE
Use of Resources ERER Unit By (Unit/'000 m?) (Unit/'000 m?)
(Bf/FFHK) (Bh/FTEHK)
Direct energy consumption  Diesel HERERS b MWh KEE 12,822.6 15.6 14,259.4 18.3
Gasoline b MWh KEE 736.4 09 828.3 1.1
Natural gas KRR MWh KEE 177.6 0.2 2355 0.3
Indirect energy consumption  Electricity ~ Fig#REE B MWh KEE 8,242.2 10.0 11,839.8 15.2
Steam’ A MWh KEE 1,238.0 1.5 1,340.8 1.7
Total energy consumption HREEAE MWh KEE 23,216.8 2.3 28,503.8 36.6
Water X m? VAR 44,409.0 54.1 67,870.0 87.1
Packaging materials Byplastc ~ @£#H 2B tonnes i 0.03 3.7x10° 0.03 3.9x10°
By paper il tonnes W 0.03 3.7x10° 0.03 3.9x10°
Paper #k kg TR 11,480.0 14.0 20,4336 26.2
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Notes:

6. Direct energy consumption data has been converted into
MWh based on the “Energy Statistics Manual” ( (&R &5t F
fit) ) issued by the International Energy Agency. In 2023, the
diesel consumption was approximately 1,198,010.9 L (2022:
approximately 1,332,253.6 L), the gasoline consumption was
approximately 75,981.2 L (2022: approximately 85,466.9 L), and
the natural gas consumption was approximately 16,980.0 m?
(2022: approximately 22,520.0 md).

7. The data of steam consumption has been converted into MWh in
accordance with the “General Guideline of the Greenhouse Gas
Emissions Accounting and Reporting for Enterprises — Power
Generating Equipment” ( (bR EREBHEHIZE H A8 H S
m— 2 ERHE) ) and the “Energy Statistics Manual” ( {BEJRATET
F11) ) published by the International Energy Agency. In 2023,
the steam consumption was approximately 1,577 tonnes (2022:
approximately 1,708 tonnes).

Direct energy

The Group mainly uses gasoline and diesel for vehicle
transportation and loading and unloading practices, while natural
gas is used for heating in daily operations. Due to the decrease in
reach stacker operations as a result of lower demand for storage
yard cooling, the diesel, gasoline and natural gas consumption
decreased in 2023 as compared to 2022. To better monitor and
control its energy consumption performance, the Group will put
more focus on the sustainable solutions by upgrading its vehicle
fleet in terms of energy efficiency improvement and grasping any
opportunities for the use of renewable energy sources and the
wide application of electric vehicles.
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Electricity

The Group’s consumption of electricity mainly comes from
the daily operation of warehouses. In 2023, the electricity
consumption of the Group decreased as compared to 2022,
which was mainly due to the Company’s improvement in
refrigerating of the cold warehouse by adopting more energy
saving operation methods. Geared toward lowering the electricity
consumption and bettering the performance in decarbonization,
the Group improved the rules and regulations and formulated
specific measures for energy saving and consumption reduction
for equipment in office zone, including but not limited to fully
utilize the natural light whenever applicable; switch off all idling
electricity appliances including lights and air conditioners;
improve the operation methods of refrigerating facilities in
warehouse; maintain and replace the equipment regularly to
improve the performance of equipment; replace power-intensive
lightings by energy efficient LED lights; encourage employees
to adopt natural ventilation or ventilation fans for areas instead
of air-conditioning when applicable; and actively introduce new
technology for energy saving, explore the feasibility on the use
of renewable energy in operations. The Group requires all of its
subsidiaries to stringently comply with the energy saving policy.
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Case sharing: Energy-saving and consumption-reducing measures for refrigeration of cold
storage
RODE  RERBRLTERERR

We have adopted a series of measures to improve energy efficiency. Firstly, all evaporators installed
cameras for real-time observation and are shuttled down once defrosting is done. Employees from different
teams or floors shall shoulder different responsibilities. We have set a unified defrosting standard and run
the evaporator in round robin manner. This can decrease the number of times the evaporator is turned on
and can also evenly release cold air, resulting in a 25% year-on-year duction in energy consumption and a
drop of approximately 2.2 million kWh in electricity consumption. Secondly, we have improved operational
process for the start and stop of compressor. Different shifting schedules, minimum temperature standards
setting and daily record of electricity consumption have been adopted to select the process with the
lowest power consumption as the standard, requiring night shifting staff to manually start and stop the
running of compressor. In order to enhance the overheating capacity of evaporative cooler, we descaled it
and adjusted the high-power cooling fan by variable frequency technology to cope with different weather
conditions. We also upgraded the water tray heating equipment to prevent winter freeze-ups, and changed
the winter cooling mode by using cooling water to cool the refrigeration unit, thereby significantly reducing
power consumption.

R TIRSERAE - BRI T —FIHEHE - B ROEMBRAES LR TREHRETERER - WK
AEVERIEN AR - BB HENSEEREENAXBEERT - WFﬁ*”*ﬁ’:—pﬂmh C WERAEIR AR
BRHOFNET - GRS ERERNRARBKRE - b I9E LR - RMEEERL TR T 25%  AEE
TEL2208 TRE - R - $FHBEEOBISHEE - RAE TRIERE - BRBASHAE - RERE TRIZ
EMBRIEHERAEBEROG EE%%@E?&W’M’E?‘%@&&& C ERREETABETALRIEREHET
R RTIRSERBLRSBRE N  RAHERFLETTBEERE I%Uﬁﬁmﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂ%
A RS A RR R - WF%&%Z&TK&%DD?&aﬁLABﬁﬁ% Rk - RN E T ZFERE - MRS AIKE
BIRAB S AR R MR - AR BREEFE

In addition, we have adjusted the shift schedule to standardize the work content. For evaporator
defrosting, we adjusted the operation procedure to ensure short time and high efficiency of defrosting.
At the same time, we developed compressor and evaporative cooling operations procedures to reduce
energy consumption and unify operation standards. A performance evaluation mechanism was introduced
to quantify the work and reward the team with the lowest monthly energy consumption. Thanks to the
implementation of these improvement measures, the Group’s energy consumption has been reduced.
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Steam

The steam consumption of the Group is mainly used for indoor
heating in winter. In 2023, The steam consumption of Group
has decreased as compared to 2022, which was due to the
Group strictly controls the temperature of heat supply to save the
amount of steam. The Group has implemented relevant measures
to reduce steam consumption, including but not limited to clean
heating radiator to increase its heat efficiency and repair heating
pipes to save energy and reduce consumption.

Water

The Group’s main sources of water consumption are the daily
operation and living. Based on the geographical location of the
Group’s operation scope, the Group’s water is sourced from
municipal water supply, and did not experience any difficulty in
obtaining suitable water source in 2023. The consumption of
water in 2023 decreased as compared to 2022. Following its
internal policies, the Group provides water awareness training
to its employees and accesses the conservation performance
among employees regularly. The Group also posted signs
in prominent places to disseminate water saving concept
throughout the organization.

Packaging materials

In 2023, the amount of packaging materials used by the Group
maintained the similar level as in 2022. While the consumption of
packaging materials is inevitable to its logistic business activities,
the Group takes the responsibility for being conscious about the
use of packaging materials. As such, the Group will continue
to research and apply alternative packaging materials made of
recyclable content, striving to minimize its environmental footprint
to the largest extent.
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Paper

Paper was mostly used in the Group for its administrative work.
In 2023, the amount of paper consumed by the Group decreased
as compared to 2022. To keep up its effort in driving down the
consumption of paper and other paper-made products, the
Group rents more energy-efficient printing equipment, promotes
a paperless office and continues to implement a series of
effective internal measures to regulate its employees’ practices
and business operations, including but not limited to set double-
side printing as the default mode of the printers, collect single-
sided paper for reuse and recycling, and improve the utilization
rate of platforms such as corporate mailboxes, and collaborative
workspace applications, enhance employees’ awareness of
conservation and environmental protection.

The Environment and Natural Resources

As a leading logistics group that moves goods across countries
and provides a wide range of logistics solutions and services,
the Group deeply understands its impact on the environment.
Throughout the organization, employees are encouraged to
follow the Group’s sustainability strategies and reminded to
achieve its environmental targets. The Group believes that
behavioural change starts with knowledge, and thus it equips
its employees who play a key role in daily business actions with
internal programmes to advance their environmental awareness
and encourage them to make continuous changes. The Group is
accredited with ISO 14001 Environmental Management System
certification.

According to the analysis of its business practices, the relatively
significant environmental impacts of the Group were mainly the
air and GHG emissions arose from the consumption of fossil
fuels and electricity during operations in 2023. In light of these,
the Group is determined to control its procurement process
of vehicles and refrigerators to ensure that the priority can be
given to the products with better environmental performance.
Meanwhile, the Group has also been active in exploring the
possibility of tapping into the application of renewable energy and
acquiring vehicles fuelled by cleaner new energy instead of fossil
fuels.
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The Group resolutely puts an end to extravagance and waste,
and actively responds to the “Work Plan for Anti-Food Waste
and Food Conservation in Teda Holding System” ( {Z=#EE
RESRBEmMREEREBREAMIBIIESZE) ). The Group
makes full use of the official website and other publicity media
to disseminate public service advertisements, and vigorously
advocates the concept of cherishing food. The Group has also
established an implementation mechanism for anti-food waste
and food conservation, using scientific and technological means
to strengthen supervision and inspection, and makes prompt
reminders when problems are found.

Climate Change

As the impact of climate change gradually emerges, it has
become an urgent need and common expectation of all countries
to reduce carbon emissions. In support of the national carbon
goal and in response to the gradually increasing demand from
investors and the wider society, the Group has formulated the
“Climate Change Policy” ( {RIEE L) ), and also integrated
climate change into its internal controls and enterprise risk
management procedure. The Group made a view of different
climate scenarios and transition pathways, and identified
several physical and transition risks related to its business that
may cause significant impact according to the international
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures.

BRI HEREMRERES

AEBBERMBHFORE @ BIRE
(REZERRAGRRMREBEARR
ERHOBIB TR R) - XEEFRDH
AETBEEEEREERAEE
HFoANREERRRIES - X
SENTEYRRRRERERL
B TEEBEHKS  FARRTFE
MREERENE - HREENE

HeER o

FIRR{

BERBEELTRKNTEZTR
IR AR BE UK R & E B R &Y
BYRERMARBRAR - RXFHEK
WMHERBER TEEKREENE
AMEHRERNTR AEH
EHECRIEZMBE) TER
SR Z b wn A K B H A 2
FElERRF - ~AEERERK
HE A B 75 15 2 B2 B8 T 1E /) 4H (Task
Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures) Bl #% @ 25T FE
RARE RN RIS - I E Al B
ErEAYERAMEEBNET
RIRE B R EER R -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

43



44

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
5 ERCRERES

Physical risks

The increase in frequency of extreme weather events such as
storms, flooding, heat and cold wave, etc., may significantly
affect the transport conditions no matter on ground, air or water,
and subsequently the Group’s supply chain and operation
safety. In response to the above risks, the Group has formulated
the “Emergency Management Measures” ( {fEZEIEHL) ),
organized the formulation of emergency response plans, and
provided its management and drivers comprehensive training
regularly on how to cope with emergencies and protect its
personal and property safety and also pay close attention to
the early warning notices issued by government meteorological
departments and emergency management departments for
extreme weather events and make corresponding business
adjustments in coordination with them. The Group has also
purchased insurance for its staff and assets to minimize or avoid
property damage in the event of extreme weather affecting
the Group’s premises. Meanwhile, the Group maintains close
communications with customers to ensure flexible and resilient
transport solutions when Group’s supply chain is affected.

Transition risks

Regulations and laws on environmental protection are also
becoming more stringent. The PRC government has made a
commitment to achieve carbon emission peak by 2030 and
carbon neutral by 2060. The Group may be subject to the
mandatory disclosure of its full scope of carbon emissions. In
addition, the enactment of carbon pricing or carbon tax may
also lead to the rise in price of raw materials or the replacement
of more expensive alternatives. As these transition risks are
potentially going to cause increasing operating cost and lower
revenue, the Group is aware of the significance and urgency to
pay particular attention decarbonizing its operations and to grasp
the opportunity to master some new low-carbon technologies
which can greatly enhance its competitive advantage and
industry leading position. The Group has set energy saving and
emission reduction targets in accordance with relevant national
programs and implemented corresponding measures to reduce
greenhouse gas emissions, integrating the transformation targets
into its ESG strategies.
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SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

The Group is committed to building a strong relationship with
various stakeholders, and incorporating sustainable practices
into our value chain. This section primarily discloses the Group’s
policy, practices and quantitative data regarding employment
and labour practices, operating practices as well as community
investment in 2023.

Employment and Labour Practices

The Group is committed to the empowerment and care for
all, especially its employees. The Group believes that it has
the responsibility to support and enhance the well-being of its
employees and bring about positive shared value to them. To
this end, the Group has been endeavouring to create a sound
working environment, in which the OHS of employees, diversity
and inclusion in the workplace, as well as the overall well-being of
all its workers are respected and promoted.

Employment

The Group views talents as its most valuable assets and the
key driving factor in ensuring the success and sustainable
development of the Group. In 2023, the Group has 1,208
employees within the reporting scope (2022:1,265 on-the-job
employees). More details can be found in Table 1 in “APPENDIX
- PERFORMANCE TABLE”.
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The Group’s human resources department is responsible for
reviewing and updating relevant policies regularly in accordance
with the latest laws and regulations. In 2023, the Group abided
by the applicable laws and regulations in the PRC that were
material to the Group’s business, including but not limited to
“Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (% AR
ME & ENE) ), “Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ((FEARENMHLE AR L) ), “Employment
Promotion Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( (A R 3t
MEFLER L) ) and “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic
of China” ( (P EEARAFBIH SRIIE) ).

Recruitment and promotion

The Group has stated the labour and personnel system in its
Employee Handbook ( & TF ) ), which specifies the detailed
recruitment procedures and promotion requirements of the
Group. To attract talents who are in sync with the core culture
of the Group, the Group selects applicants through a rigorous
selection process, including written examination of professional
skills, comprehensive ability tests and supervisor interviews.

Besides, the Group has plans and budgets to conduct
performance appraisals. Recognizing the employees who have
demonstrated consistently strong performance and became the
role models, the Group takes proactive initiatives to offer them
management positions. Concerning the career growth of junior
employees, the Group provides a clear career development path,
offering promotion and pay raise for the outstanding employees
who have served the Group for over three years.
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Compensation and dismissal

According to the Group’s “salary management system”, the salary
composition is divided into monthly basic salary, monthly bonus
and performance bonus. “Annual salary system” is implemented
for the senior management, in which salary standards are
approved by the Board. Meanwhile, a “job performance-based
salary system” is implemented for middle-management and
general employees, of which salaries are based on employees’
performances and determined by the general manager. To
motivate, reward, and recognize the existing employees who
have made significant contributions to the Group, compensation
reviews and salary adjustments are conducted regularly with
reference to the overall market levels, inflation rate, profitability of
the Group and employee’s past performance.

Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract is strictly
based on reasonable and lawful grounds according to the
“labour and personnel system” of the Group, and relevant laws
and regulations. The Group prohibits any kinds of unlawful or
unreasonable dismissals. In 2023, the Group has a loss of 102
employees in total within the reporting scope, the employee
turnover rate is approximately 8.44% (2022: a loss of 76
employees in total, the employee turnover rate is approximately
6.01%). More details about the employee turnover rate can be
found in Table 2 in “APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE”.

Working hours and rest periods

Reasonable working hours and rest periods are arranged for the
employees of the Group in accordance with the “Regulations
of the State Council on the Hours of Work of Employees” (
BTN T TERREAEE) ). The Group details policies
in relation to business trips, leave, compensation leave and
overtime working through “Attendance Management Measures
(Revised)"( (EHEREHE (185]) ) ). Overtime working is
not encouraged by the Group, yet if employees need to work
overtime to finish their tasks, corresponding compensation such
as overtime pay or extra leave will be made. According to the
“Detailed Implementation Rules of Leave” ( {IREREAHAN) ),
in addition to basic paid annual leave and statutory holidays
stipulated by the local governments, employees are also entitled
to additional leave benefits such as sick leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and compassionate leave.
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Equal-opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is dedicated
to developing a diverse and inclusive workforce of engaged
employees. The “guidance on professional conducts” in the
Group’s “Employee Handbook” ( { & TFffft) ) promotes anti-
discrimination, diversity and equal opportunity in all human
resources and employment decisions. Equal opportunity
policies are formulated in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations. The human resources department is responsible
for managing the relevant internal policies and monitoring the
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, as well as
addressing any incidences that arise.

The Group has zero tolerance for any form of discrimination
which can hinder the Group’s development by damaging its
diverse teams and inclusive cultures. Training and promotion
opportunities, dismissals and retirement policies are determined
irrespective of employees’ gender, race, age, disability, family
status, marital status, sexual orientation, religion beliefs,
nationality or any other non-job-related factors in all business
units. Employees are encouraged to voice out and report any
discrimination or harassment during work.

Benetfits and welfare

The Group provides its employees with mandatory social
insurance to support their quality of life in accordance with the
relevant national laws and regulations. To enable its people to
thrive in the workplace, the Group also strives to strengthen
the sense of belonging of its employees by providing them
with pension insurance, unemployment insurance, labour injury
insurance, medical insurance, housing fund, housing subsidies,
annual physical examination and special holidays subsidies.

In 2023, the Group distributed festive gifts to employees at
important festivals such as the Spring Festival and the Mid-
autumn Festival, and organized activities such as archery
competition, writing Fu characters and sending Spring couplets
and purchasing billiard cases, movie tickets to enrich the spare
time of its employees.
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Health and Safety

As a logistic business enterprise, keeping its employees safe is
the highest priority and an ethical responsibility for the Group.
In 2023, the Group was in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to providing a safe working environment
and protecting the employees from occupational hazards that
have a significant impact on the Group, including but not limited
to “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China”
((REARAMBL 2 AEERL) ), “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases”
((PEARAMBEBZEBPEA) ), “Regulations of Tianjin
Municipality on Work Safety” ( {RZEM L2 AEEEH) ), “Interim
Provisions on the Investigation and Control of Safety Accidents
(SAWS Order No. 16)" ((Z2EEEMEBHEREE TR
E) (#F1655%)), “Guideline of China Occupational Safety
and Health Management System” ( (P EZ 24 EZHE(LE
AFRE) ) and “Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance”
( CTBREAEH) ). In February 2023, the Group also prepared
for the review of production safety standardization. During the
review period, two rounds of inspection by the reassessment
agency and the evaluation agency has been conducted and
rectification completed. In November 2023, the Group obtained
the certificate of production safety standardization (Level 2)
issued by Tianjin Work Safety Management Association. Through
the establishment of a “production safety responsibility system”,
the development of safety management methods, carrying out
a “level-specific management and control system” and potential
risks identification to strengthen the on-site standardization
management and the standard, scientific, systematic and legal
safety production of the Company. We set up and maintain the
“safety production management system” to comprehensively
control the safety production in all aspects of operational
activities, and continuously improve the safety management
level to further highlight our excellent performance in safety
production.
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The Group formulates a comprehensive mechanism and stringent
safety and labour practice standards, namely “occupational
health management system” in “Employee Handbook” ( { &
T Ffft) ), to minimize the risk of accidents at workplace and
enhance employees’ health and safety awareness. We review
relevant policies and the necessity of health and safety practices
regularly to ensure continuous improvements of our health
and safety standards. A 24-hour emergency hotline and the
“Emergency Response Plan” ( (2R EHEZTEZE) ), which
covers a wide range of incidents and calamities, are also set up
to ensure the coordination among all functional departments in
case of any emergencies.

Focusing on embedding a zero harm culture through proactive
leadership, the Group establishes its internal health and safety
management committee to protect the occupational safety of
employees. The safety management committee formed by the
managers of various departments is responsible for the prevention
and control of occupational diseases, managing work-related
health issues, organizing safety training courses and reporting to
the directors of the Group regularly on occupational safety related
issues. Meanwhile, the Group has obtained certification of ISO
45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System,
which showcases the Group’s achievements in the aspects of
occupational health and management.

To ensure the safety of workers during daily operations, the
Group has established “Rules for the Screening and Elimination
of Hidden Risks of Accidents”( ( BB HEEREIE) ),
clarifying the forms, cycles, contents and standards that need to
be in accordance with the screening of hidden risks. The Group
has also established a series of standard operating procedures
to provide guidance for safe operation in the business of logistics
and warehousing services. For instance, water tanks, storage
batteries, engine oil, fuel oil and tires of the vehicles are checked
by the Group in advance every day to ensure that all vehicles are
absolutely safe. Regular inspections and maintenance of vehicles
for transportation are carried out on a weekly, monthly and
quarterly basis. Through daily morning assemblies, the Group
assesses its employees’ physiological and mental state. In the
meantime, to ensure the safe use of working trolleys and improve
operation efficiency, clean paths are kept at both ends of the
goods racks to maintain smooth passage between the working
area and the storage area.
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Aiming to achieve an accident-free workplace, the Group has
established “Safety Production System Management Measures”
((E2HEEREEEPHE) ), and it is committed to continuing
to upskill the managers to integrate critical control measures in
business operations. The Group also conducts safety trainings for
employees at least once a year through “Management Measures
on Safety Education and Training” ( { Z& ¥ E EIEEIE) ),
which are suitable for their positions, and organizes reviews on
accident cases to enhance the safety awareness of employees
and prevent accidents from happening. In the past three years,
including 2023, the Group recorded zero work-related fatalities,
so the percentage of work-related deaths was 0%. In 2023,
the Group recorded 1 work-related injury case with 1 employee
injured, causing 53 workdays lost (2022: 4 work-related injury
cases with 4 employees injured, causing 397 workdays lost).

Development and Training

Facilitating its employees to thrive, the Group sees training as
a strategic investment which benefits the mutual growth of
employees as well as the Group itself. To this end, the Group
has established “Recruitment and Employment Management
Measures (Trial)"( (IEFIEEHLE (F7T) ) ), which details training
contents and forms, and provides guidance for each department
to conduct training activities effectively. The human resources
department is the originator of the training, other departments
are responsible for assisting the human resources department to
implement the training programme.

The Group’s training system is divided into pre-job training,
skill training, special training and external training. Normally, a
complete induction training (introducing the corporate culture,
organizational structure and knowledge related to OHS) is
provided to the new hires, while non-scheduled profession-
oriented courses are offered to the experienced employees
according to corporate and individual needs. To further enhance
the professional skills of its employees and meet the Group's
development goal, employees are highly motivated to attend
external training courses and take professional qualification
examinations. The training results will be included in the training
file of each employee as important evidence for employee
performance assessment, formal employment, promotion etc.
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In 2023, a total of 199 employees of the Group received
2,408.5 hours of training (2022: 216 employees, 4,305 hours
of training), including but not limited to courses of induction
training, promotion training, quality control training, health and
safety training and systems management training. There was
a decrease in the number of trained employees and training
hours in 2023 as compared to 2022. More details regarding
the employees receiving training can be found in Table 3 in
“APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE”.

Labour Standards

The Group has zero tolerance to the illegal employment of child
labour, underage workers and forced labour. In 2023, the Group
was in compliance with applicable laws and regulations in relation
to the prevention of child and forced labour that have a significant
impact on the Group, including but not limited to “Labour Law
of the People’s Republic of China” ( {1 #E AR L FE LS E) )
and “Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” ( {Z£ 1k
EREIRE) ).

According to its internal policies, the human resources
department is responsible for requiring all job applicants to
provide valid identity documents to ensure that they are lawfully
employable prior to confirmation of any employment. The
human resources department is also responsible for maintaining
and reviewing the employee records. To avoid any violation of
the labour standards and protect employees’ legal rights and
interests, the Group’s employees strictly regulate practices in
relation to working hours and rest periods. More details can be
found in the section headed “Employment — Working hours and
rest periods” above. Once the Group identifies any case which
violates the relevant labour laws, regulations or standards, the
relevant employment contract will be terminated at once and the
relevant employees responsible for the management of human
resources will be disciplined accordingly.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

20234 - AEEH 199K EE#
¥ 2,408.5 /)N 15 5/l (2022 F : 216
ZEE - 4,305/ NEEEHI) - BIER
TRAABEN - SHEI - E2
Z2HIEI - BEETE2FIARE
BHIE | - 2023 F 52 A BB
RE2022F D - BHREEXE
ElEcESE A= NN S - P E
&3

BT

-

AEEHIEEAEAEZET AXNFL
AREHI S TRNERDEE - B
2023%F + AEEETHAEEEK
BARENBRARLEET KAkl
TITHERERRER  BEETR
PR EAREMBLEE) R
FREIRE)

RIEEABEE - ANBERIFR
BEESMARKBERHBERNT N
&S - ARE A AT RE R 5 A
BEXE - ANBRMBITEAERE
NMEEETTH /ERERST
REMMERES AR A&H
BEBBRABERHIERFERKE
REMIED - BRAMESAI2E X
(B - TERBRKREER]—
B o — BN E B E RAR
BENAR  OERABRENER - 4
BREREEAK LKL MABEA
HEREENIEMAES KX 2EE
MACREED °



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

The Group collaborates with a wide range of suppliers and
purchases products including vehicles and its parts, as well as
raw materials for steel production and frozen meat. The Group
recognizes that its procurement decisions can cause significant
environmental and social impacts, therefore the Group strives to
uphold its high standards of business conduct along its supply
chain. The Group mainly maintains stable, secure and effective
partnership with suppliers by strictly aligning them with the
Group’s “Supplier Conduct Code” ( ftfER 1T AZERI) ). This
code provides clear guidance about the Group’s commitments
and expectations on sustainability, including the respect for
human rights especially for their employees and the compliance
with local environmental protection laws and regulations.

The Group has established “Procurement Management
Measures”( (EREEEIEHT/%) ), in which the designated personnel
take responsibility for procurement, and the principles, ways
and procedures are standardized to ensure the normal supply of
materials and services. The Group’s general office selects based
on the result of the Preliminary Investigation Report of each
candidate’s suppliers prepared by the Operation Department,
listing the potential partners’ basic business information,
licences, operational and financial performances, as well as the
involved non-compliance or legal cases. Besides, the Group
has a qualified supplier list that will be reviewed annually against
four main aspects, namely regulatory compliance, employee
rights, health and safety and environmental protection, to ensure
all suppliers’ performances meet the Group’s standards. In
promotion of green and sustainable procurement practices, the
Group prioritizes goods with origins that are conforming to the
international production safety standards during procurement,
while putting the collaboration with suppliers with green and eco-
friendly awareness in the first place during suppliers selection.

BRI HEREMRERES

ZEEEM
ayid d=§:d

AEBEEBEZHOHREHEE KB
BREMLETEMNF  MELER
ML RAREER - AREEH
ERBARAESYRRTNES
EREATE Bt AREZ N
EHEAEREPESESEENEE
TR - AKEEHEHREZE
REMNBRNBHEER  LlER
EBREETASEN(HERITRE
A) - WERSAKEEAFERR
77 ) orE S A B TR R R o)
BREEABLEHHEET )M
BT EHIRBREERER

AEBEERKEBEERE)
HEARERBEE  RERBR
- TARRERF - BERYERBRS
MIEFHE RNEBHEAPIER
BEEMRRNSUIFERERD
HPAEREERETHE - S
BEGEBHNERRBEN 3
R REMPIERE - UWEFE R
MTERIERREN - B KK
BEARERHERRE  BFA
BUOEXTESERZEE - &
EEM EEEN  EREAREIN
RIRBRE - ABRAAHERD
KA EAEBERE - EHEBAR
BARERE TIENBERET A%
BREBEFELCEREREMTAE
RLELERENTY  WREHE
HEMBELEBEAFZERE
ERHEEAE -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

53



54

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BE - dEREXERRE

To manage the potential environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, the Group implements a differentiated management
strategy for its suppliers to identify their latent risks and ensure
they operate in accordance with the “Supplier Code Conduct”
( (HFERTTAXER]) ). In particular, a detailed list of risk and
prevention and control measures are constructed in managing
the potential significant risks of the cold chain logistic business
from three perspectives: procurement, storage and sales. In the
meantime, audits and evaluations are conducted by the Group’s
legal department jointly with the finance department to ensure
no illegal activities are involved in the partnership. Information
of suppliers who provide products or services to the Group is
reviewed regularly to monitor the effectiveness of the “Supplier
Code Conduct”.

The Group maintained a stable business relationship with all its
suppliers. In 2023, the Group has 119 suppliers totally, of which
112 suppliers from the PRC, 7 suppliers from Hong Kong (2022:
113 suppliers in the PRC), representing an increase as compared
to 2022, to which the aforementioned suppliers’ management
policies are applied.

To keep up the stable communication with its suppliers, the
Group signs the memorandum with its suppliers and actively
communicates with them through digital means such as phone
calls, emails, instant messages and video conference. Meanwhile,
regular on-site visits are also conducted by the operation
department for more efficient communication.

Product Responsibility

As a national 5A-level integrated service logistics company, the
Group has been invariably committed to providing its customers
with people-oriented, tailor-made and professional services.
The Group has formulated relevant policies, kept reviewing its
services and making corresponding improvements from the ESG
perspectives, which allows the Group to refine its operations on a
continuous basis and serve its customers politely and compliantly
in compliance with the strict regulations in various national
jurisdictions.
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Adhering to the reporting principle of materiality, policies and
approaches regarding product recalls, advertising and labelling,
which are not material to the Group given its business nature,
are not disclosed in this section. In 2023, the Group was in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations regarding
health and safety, advertising, intellectual property, labelling
and privacy matters of its products and services that are
material to the Group, including but not limited to “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” ( (REARKEMBEEEERIREL) ) and
“Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {FRZE AR
HABIEEE) ).

Quality of Service

In order to enhance the safety and high quality of its logistics
and warehouse services during operations and aftersales, all
logistics and warehousing work before the official delivery to end
customers must be operated by designated supporting service
providers approved by the management. The Group upholds
the concept of precautionary principle during its daily operations,
with the potential risks prejudged beforehand, whole process
supervision during projects and the active review afterwards as
its main responsibility concepts. The Group has obtained the
certification of ISO9001 Quality Management System. The Group
mainly provides services and does not manufacture goods. In
2023, the Group did not have any recalls due to safety and health
related matters (2022: no recalls).

In order to maintain stable service quality, the Group actively
explores multiple logistics solutions such as railway, road and
searail combined transportation etc. to preserve the continuous
supply of goods. Meanwhile, the Group also expands the
diversity of its supplier-client network and explores a new supply
chain model with the adaptation of digital storage technologies in
response to the fast-changing market demand.
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Transportation and Safety of Storage

To track the location of vehicles and goods in real time, the
Group has built the monitoring system and cargo tracking
system, which enables the Group to have timely access to the
status of cargo transportation. To ensure the safety of goods
during transportation, dash cams are set up to inspect and
record the condition of the transporting vehicles, while devices
are adopted to prevent accidents such as the dropout of head
and trailer as well as forgetting to close the flying wing.

To ensure the safety and strengthen the security of goods,
an all-day security inspection system is established within the
warehouse area, while special inspections are carried out on
a quarterly basis. More than 60 sets of cameras and ancillary
equipment were installed and renewed to ensure that all areas
in the general bonded warehouse of the Group are under
surveillance. To ensure the safety of goods in the warehouse,
written documents such as packing list and inspection report
of the goods are required and strictly regulated by the Group.
Unpacking inspections are performed as well to identify and
manage any incoming goods with hazardous substances.

Complaints

Dedicating to its customer service optimization, the Group values
customer feedback and formulates a series of customer service
management systems and maintains continuous dialogues with
its customers. Once any substantiated complaint is received,
specific departments of the Group are responsible for dealing
with the case and responding to the customer with clear plans for
product return, exchange or compensation in a timely manner. In
2023, the Group did not receive any substantial complaints about
the service quality (2022: no complaints), and the customer
satisfaction remained at a high level according to the results of
customer surveys.
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Privacy Matters

It is crucial for the Group to safeguard the security of its business
data and the privacy of its customers to prevent any potential
losses. Striving to protect all sensitive data, the Group abides
by the relevant laws and regulations such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer Rights
and Interests” ( (FEARKEMBEEEEEIREE) ). The
information management department formulates and monitors
the implementation of the strict policies to safeguard clients’
privacy and the internal information of the Group. A network data
centre is established to ensure the cyber security of the Group,
while risk management and technical incident recovery plans
are developed to protect personal data and mitigate losses in
case of any accidents. Meanwhile, a confidentially agreement is
normally signed with relevant parties for business that ensures
no disclosure of any sensitive data to the third-party without
authorization.

Intellectual Property Rights

In order to prevent infringement, the Group has established the
“Software Legalization Responsibility System” ( ({4 IEhAL T1E
ETHIE) ). Employees shall sign the “Letter of Commitment to
Use the Legitimate Software” ( {f F IEMREHAGESE ) ) for using
the software, strictly abide by the relevant regulations regarding
the software legalization, and shall not install or uninstall the
software on the computer without permission. The corresponding
punishment shall be given according to the circumstances if an
employee is found to be using pirated software.
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Anti-corruption

The Group believes that the continued success of a business is
built on the stakeholders’ trust and confidence. To conduct its
business with the highest standards of ethics and integrity, the
Group strictly adheres to the local laws and regulations relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering which have a
material impact on the Group, including but not limited to “Anti-
Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of China” ( {FZEAR
HRE R EBE) ), “Anti-money Laundering Law of the People’s
Republic of China” ( {fEARKMBELEEE) ), “Interim
Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery” ( B8R 1F 2
BEERTT AME1TIEE) ), “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( {FZE A RHEME R T IEEHF
%) ), “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” (Cap. 201 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance” (Cap. 615 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

In 2023, the Group had no concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its employees
(2022: no cases).

The Group strictly regulates its business processes and employee
behaviour based on the code of conduct as clearly listed in its
“Employee Handbook” ( (& TF#) ). The Business Department
is responsible for conducting risk prevention measures including
monthly self-inspection, legal and financial control of all business
units involved in lawsuits and the use of funds to prevent any
suspicious deals or transactions. Meanwhile, the Group sets
up a “Whistleblowing System” ( (2R #|E ) ) and assigns
specific discipline employees for the investigation and handling
of suspected activities. Employees can report directly to their
supervisors or the discipline employees, who will then investigate
and verify the related evidence and report to the Group’s
discipline department and the management. Where any crime is
substantiated by the Group, a report will be submitted promptly
to relevant regulators or law enforcement authorities when the
management considers it necessary. To monitor the effectiveness
of the whistleblowing policy, all complaints are reviewed regularly
to identify any pattern of alleged improprieties that need to be
addressed.
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To raise their awareness on business ethics from time to time,
the Group organizes training activities at least once a year for
its employees, and arranges them to learn and refresh their
memories on the national anti-corruption policies and the Group’s
internal code of conduct. The Company also developed an
integrity risk prevention and control handbook in 2023 and made
a presentation of it to all. In 2023, 66 employees of the Group
received a total of approximately 86 hours of anti-corruption
training, including but not limited to learning about the discipline
ordinance and watching anti-corruption warnings and records on
videos.

Community
Community Investment

As a good corporate citizen, the Group still focuses on its
support of the local communities as this is an important part of its
social license to operate. The Group has formulated the “Social
Welfare Management Policy” ( (@ RAmEEEEHKE) ) to
focus on the poverty alleviation of the local population and the
building of capacity of local communities. As such, the Group’s
support came in the form of creating local job opportunities and
prioritizing local suppliers in 2023. Meanwhile, the Group attaches
great importance to fostering a sense of social responsibility
among its employees and encouraging them to better serve the
community both in work and their personal time. We actively
seek opportunities to focus on supporting the local community.

In 2023, the Group has been committed to fulfilling its social
responsibilities. Looking forward, the Group will keep its original
intention and mission in mind, and will be committed to carrying
out more charitable activities which align with its philosophy.
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APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE Bffd — AU E

Table 1. Number of Employees within the Reporting Scope by Age & 1. RAHME&HE RNIZFRRAER -~ E5 -
Group, Gender, Position Type, Employment Type, Geographical B - EFEfHEA « tEEHH{EES AHS

Locations®
Number of employees Age group
EEAZ FRan
Aged Aged
Aged between between Aged
30 or below 31and 40 41 and 50 51 or above Total
0FEBMUT NEZ405 HEZ505 51mEN L ay
Gender 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
37 2023F 20224  2028F  202F  2023% 02%F  208F  202F  202F 2022
Mele S 78 9% 314 370 391 382 152 138 935 986
Female Tt 20 33 154 174 97 69 2 3 273 279
Total By 98 129 468 544 488 451 154 14 1,208 1,265
Number of employees Position
EEAY Bz
Director

General and senior

employee Management management Total

-R8I EEAR EEREAEEAS ay
Gender 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
3] 2023% 1206 2023 20206 2023 20206 2023% 0206
Male B 765 800 147 152 23 34 935 986
Female it 203 216 64 58 6 5 213 279
Total g 968 1,016 211 210 29 39 1,208 1,265
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Number of employees Employment type
EEAY ERER
Full time Part time/Dispatched Out-sourced Total
g R/ TE M ay
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023F 2022F 20235 02F 20285 20226 2023 2022F
Total &% 952 1,017 76 0 180 158 1,208 1,265
Number of employees Geographical location
EEAY e
PRC Japan Total
HE A& By
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 2022 2023%F 20226 2023%F 202
Total & 1,202 1,258 6 7 1,208 1,265
Note: =

8. The employment data in headcount was obtained from the Group’s 8.
human resources department based on the employment contracts
entered into between the Group and its employees. The data covered
employees engaged in a direct employment relationship with the
Group according to relevant local laws and workers whose work and/
or workplace was controlled by the Group. The methodology adopted
for reporting on employment data set out above was based on “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social

KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.
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Table 2. Employee Turnover Rate within the Reporting Scope by Age % 2. IR ¥ & SR AR T MBI - 14 5l K i[5 &I

Group, Gender and Geographical Locations? DHREIRAES
Employee turnover data Age group
EERXHE FRan
Aged Aged Aged Aged
30 or between between 51or
below 31and 40 41 and 50 above Total
HEIAT NRELR HRESR 51mEN L By
Gender 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
3] 2023 202F  208F  202F  202F 202F  208F  202F  202F 2022
Numberof ~ Male £ 9 9 24 28 26 11 19 13 78 61
employees  Female it 2 4 12 4 9 6 1 1 24 15
A Total By 11 13 36 2 35 17 20 14 102 76
Employee ~ Male St 11.54 9.38 7.64 7.57 6.65 2.88 12.50 9.42 8.34 6.19
tumover rate  Female q: 10.00 12.12 1.19 2.30 9.28 8.70 50.00 33.33 8.79 5.38
(%) Total By
K (%) 1122 1008 7.69 5.88 747 377 1299 993 8.44 6.01
Employee turnover data Locations
EERXEE HE
PRC Others Total
HE Hith By
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F 2023 F 2022 2023 2022F
Total number of employees BAZ 102 73 - 3 102 76
Total employee turnover rate (%) 4235 (%) 8.49 5.80 - 42.86 8.44 6.01
Note: MizE -

9. Employee turnover rate = number of employees in the category leaving 9. EERAE =2 FZERIHERE TAH

employment during the year = number of employees in the category T HERZERREE AZ X 100% o Filt
as at year-end X 100%. The methodology adopted for reporting on 5 B TR BIRFTER A & & T B B
turnover data set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG RATEMECARERS e RER
Report —Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the s — = S RHRERIEIRE R
Stock Exchange. 51) .
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Table 3. Training Hours Received by the Employees within the
Reporting Scope by Gender and Position Type'©

BRI HEREMRERES

RINBEBE NILMER MBALE D&
(bR e

Training data Employment type
B ERER
Director
General and senior
employee Management management Total
-REI EEAE ESRAREEAR &y
Gender 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
53] 2023 20224 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022

Employees Male £ 105 103 16 20 8 14 129 137

trained Female Tt 54 66 12 11 4 2 70 79

AR Total By 159 169 P 31 12 16 199 216

Breakdown Male £ 52.76 47.68 8.04 9.26 4,02 6.48 64.82 63.42

of employees Female it 21.14 30.56 6.03 5.09 2.01 093 35.18 36.58

trained (%)'" Total o

RilEERH%)" 79.90 7824 14.07 14.35 6.03 741 1647 17.08
- Male il 1,400  2,369.00 238.50 302.00 70.00 125650  1,708.50  2,796.50

Total training hours

. Female g 539.50 1,142.50 130.50 343.00 30.00 23.00 700 1,508.50

Total g 1,939.50  3511.50 369.00 645.00 100.00 14850  2,408.50  4,305.00

Average Male S 1.83 2.96 1.62 1.99 3.04 3.69 1.83 2.84

training hours” ~ Female y:: 2,66 529 2.04 591 5.00 4,60 2.56 541

g Total | 200 3.46 175 3.07 345 381 1.99 3.40

Notes: BaE -

10. The methodology adopted for reporting employee training data set out  10. _Eili¥ke B T IIIEEFRARN AT E
above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix B PTEM KA AR B IR R - B R
3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPls ( Al{i#R#ERE « H @ NEA ERRE — M= SRR A RIEIZE
WE M= R EBUEZEERIES]) )" issued by the Stock HwIE3I) -

Exchange.

11.  Breakdown of employees trained = number of employees trained in the 11. XIEERRH=2FZEINZIEEA
category during the year + total number of employees trained during H - 2FEZIIEEAZ X 100% (K
the year X 100% (where the total is the percentage of employees trained BB AZIEEEL =2FRZIIIE
= total number of employees trained ~+ total number of employees as at BAE - FREEBEAZ X 100%) ©
year-end X 100%).

12.  Average training hours = total number of training hours of employee in ~ 12.  F¥iF3IRE = 2 FZH A E B 1578

the category during the year = number of employees as at year-end in
the category.
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The Company believes that stringent corporate governance practices
can enhance credibility and transparency and are in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company has established a
complete set of code on corporate governance practices —“Handbook
of Corporate Governance Practices” pursuant to the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed below, the Company has
complied with all the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 (renamed as Appendix C1 since
31 December 2023) of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the reporting
year, save for the deviation of Code Provision C.1.6.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by the Directors
of the Group, which was formulated in accordance with Rules 5.48 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of setting out its own
required standards for assessment of the conduct of the Directors
in dealings in the securities of the Group. Upon enquiries made to
each Director by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the code of dealing in securities by the Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board of the Company comprises 9 Directors which includes 2
executive Director, 3 non-executive Directors and 4 independent non-
executive Directors, among which, Yang Weihong and Ma Xin are the
executive Directors; Li Jian, Sun Jing and Meng Jun are non-executive
Directors; Cheng Xinsheng, He Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law and
Peng Zuowen are independent non-executive Directors, details of the
members of the Board are set out under the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management”.
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The Board of the Company is responsible for general meetings, and
to exercise the functions granted by the general meetings and the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). The major
responsibilities of the Board include formulating the business plans
and investment advices of the Company, convening general meetings
and signing resolutions proposed at the general meetings, formulating
and reviewing the corporate governance policies and practices of
the Company, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors and “Handbook of Corporate Governance Practices
((EEREHRTFM) ), and reviewing the Company’s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report
((EEARE) ) of the Company. The interests of shareholders
and the Company is the primary concern for every member of the
Board. Directors should always comply with the relevant laws and
regulations in a dedicated manner. The management of the Company
is responsible to the Board, to exercise the board resolutions and
report to the chairman and the Board in respect of the operation of
the Company in a timely manner. The management timely provides
the updated information to the member of the Board every month by
delivery of monthly business report and statements, which set out,
among other things, the performance, financial position, prospects
and easily understandable assessment of the Company.

All the independent non-executive Directors appointed by the
Company have extensive experience in finance or enterprise
management and other professional areas. Acting in a careful and
detailed manner, independent Directors also need to safeguard
the interests of the Company and the shareholders by providing
independent advice relating to connected transactions and material
issues of the Company and providing professional recommendations
for the long-term and stable development of the Company’s business.
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The Directors are subject to a term of office of 3 years and shall be
eligible for re-election upon expiry of the term in accordance with the
Articles. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors could maintain a reasonable
balance with the executive Directors of the Board, so as to safeguard
the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors perform their
responsibilities of developing the Company’s policies by providing
constructive opinions.

During the reporting year, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rules 5.05(1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules. As of the end of the reporting year, the Board of the Company
comprises 4 independent non-executive Directors, among which
Cheng Xinsheng has the competent professional qualification in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.05(2). The independent
non-executive Directors appointed by the Company represent at least
one-third of the Board members.

The Board considers that the following features or mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that the Board is provided with independent views
and opinions:

1. The Company currently has 2 executive Directors and the other 7
Directors are all non-executive Directors who are independent of
each other and of senior management and have no relationship
with each other.

2. The independent non-executive Directors are required to review
their independence on an annual basis.

3.  None of the Directors is beneficially interested in the share capital
of any member of the Group or has any right to subscribe or
nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of
the Group.

4. All Directors may seek advice from the Company’s Legal
Department and also from an independent adviser at the
Company’s expense.

After reassessment of the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors by the Company in January 2024, the Company
considered that each of the independent non-executive Directors has
complied with all independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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There is no financial, business, family or material relationship among
the Board members.

A training was provided for each new Director of the Company after
his/her appointment, to ensure he/she would understand the operation
and business of the Group and be fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations as a Director. During the reporting year, the newly
appointed Directors Ms. Sun Jing and Ms. Meng Jun had obtained
the legal advice referred to in Rule 5.02D of the GEM Listing Rules on
15 May 2023 and 4 July 2023 respectively, and confirmed that they
understood their obligations as a director of the Company. The Group
provides briefings and seminars to all Directors, so as to enhance
his/her awareness of the relevant GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements as well as the latest developments
in the business of the Group. During the reporting year, the Directors
complied with Code Provision A.6.5 in the following ways:
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Reading Materials Seminar
Director = FMEEHR waeE
Executive Director HITES
Mr. Yang Weihong HETAL A& V v
Non-executive Directors FEITES
Mr. Li Jian TR v v
Ms. Meng Jun mER L v V
(appointed on 21 June 2023) (ER2023F6H21H
BEZ(T)
Ms. Sun Jing Rt v V
(appointed on 12 May 2023) (ER2023%F5H12H
BEZ(T)
Mr. Jo Shibin mAEELE V v
(resigned on 21 June 2023) (BR2023F6H21H
BHT)
Mr. Zhang Yan SRR FHE v V
(resigned on 25 January 2024) (BR20244%F 1 H25 H
BHT)
Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan AEESE v V
(retired on 12 May 2023) (R2023%F 54 12 HR{E)
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Prof. Cheng Xinsheng PR A B v v
Mr. He Yongjun M BELLE \ V
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law BT v v
Mr. Peng Zuowen AL v v
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The Board held thirteen Board meetings in 2023 to discuss and decide EE=&H 2023 FERNLEIT T I3 RNES
on material strategies, material operating issues, financial issues and & © &l W AUAE AN R RIREAEE - &
other matters as required in the Articles. The Company has kept the AR EEIE - MK RER AR EEFETE

detailed minutes of the relevant meetings.

MEMIIE - AR A D RFIEBEEAE
AEBHHER RS -

The attendance of the Board members during the year is set out as EFE@KERAFE L FEEZ L8N

follows: N
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE ¥FMZEEE REZES
Directors E= EES-4-F ez 2L ez BERAE
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
SRLRYA EHASEETHA (ERE)
Executive Director HTES
Mr. Yang Weihong BRI RE 13/13(100%) N/A N/A 2/2(100%) 2/2(100%)
NEH NEMA
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Mr. Li Jian ! T g e 12/13(92%) N/A N/A N/A 2/2(100%)
TER N TER
Ms. Meng Jun mte? R 7/9(78%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 21 June 2023)  (ER2023F NEH NEH NEA NEH
6421 HEZ(T)
Ms. Sun Jing HErL 11/11(100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(appointed on 12 May 2025) (BR2023F TEH TEH TEH NER
5H 12 HEZ(F)
Mr. Jo Shibin "3 BTN 2/4(50%) N/A N/A N/A 1/2(50%)
(resigned on 21 June 2023) (ER2023F NEF TEH TEA
6421 BEH)
Mr. Zhang Yan ™4 SRR AN 11/13(85%) N/A N/A N/A 2/2(100%)
(resigned on 25 January 2024) (B 2024 F TER TER TER
1425 A#HF)
Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan "® [ SR S A s 2/2(100%) N/A N/A N/A 1/2(560%)
(retired on 12 May 2023) (R2023F NEH NEH NEA
5412 AE()
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
BERZES FMWZEEE REZES
Directors E= Exeged g3 =f g3 BRRAE
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
SHELREHE EHATEETHA (BER)
Independent BUFHTES
Non-executive Director
Prof. Cheng Xinsheng ™8 TR R H R e 12/13(92%) 4/4(100%) 6/6(100%) N/A 2/2(100%)
NEHA
Mr. He Yongjun MBEELE 13/13(100%) 4/4(100%) N/A N/A 2/2(100%)
TER TER
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law "7 Z& X SE#IK 157 12/13(92%) 4/4(100%) 6/6(100%) 2/2(100%) 2/2(100%)
Mr. Peng Zuowen ZEXEE 13/13(100%) N/A 6/6(100%) 2/2(100%) 2/2(100%)
NEH
Note: MIEE -

1.

Mr. Li Jian appointed Ms. Meng Jun to attend one Board meeting. This
attendance was not included in Mr. Li Jian’s attendance.

Ms. Meng Jun appointed Mr. Li Jian to attend two Board meetings.
These two attendances were not included in Ms. Meng Jun’s
attendance.

Mr. Jo Shibin appointed Mr. Li Jian to attend two Board meetings and
one general meeting. These three attendances were not included in Mr.
Jo Shibin’s attendance. Mr. Jo Shibin did not attend the general meeting
in person due to his personal reasons, which is not in compliance with
Code Provision C.1.6.

Mr. Zhang Yan appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend two Board
meetings. These two attendances were not included in Mr. Zhang Yan’s
attendance.

FRAELDZELZEXLHFE1RESS
GHREH  Z1RRRHERTATRE

=R = R

R o

EELTREATREENREORESE
@ 2RRAHBRIAZELLY
R o

BREREEBRREFREELF2RES
FERMIRBRAE  Z3IRRRHFE
R AGREFERENHEE - RESEE
RN EAREARREH EBERAE ML EE
SIREBESTRIGICCA.6°

RREEGEZELFARELF2RESE

GEH - ZORRAHBRIARALE
BHREE -
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5. Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend one general 5

meeting. This attendance was not included in Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan’s
attendance. Mr. Zhou Zhiyuan did not attend the meeting in person due
to his personal reasons, which is not in compliance with Code Provision
C.1.6.

6.  Prof. Cheng Xinsheng appointed Mr. Yang Weihong to attend one Board 6

meeting. This attendance was not included in Prof. Cheng Xinsheng’s
attendance.

7. Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law appointed Prof. Cheng Xinsheng to attend 7 *

one Board meeting. This attendance was not included in Prof. Japhet
Sebastian Law’s attendance.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Part 2 of Appendix 15 (renamed as
Appendix C1 since 31 December 2023) of the GEM Listing Rules.
Pursuant to the Code Provision C.2.1, the roles of the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

Except for the following deviation:

At the fourth meeting of the fourth session of the Board of the
Company held on 20 March 2018, Mr. Yang Weihong was appointed
as the president (the “President”, equivalent to the “chief executive”)
of the Company, and at the 2017 annual general meeting of the
Company convened on 11 May 2018, he was elected as an executive
director of the Company and appointed as the Chairman.

At the 2019 annual general meeting of the Company convened on
19 June 2020 and the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company
convened on 12 May 2023, Mr. Yang Weihong was re-elected as an
executive Director of the fifth and sixth session of the Board of the
Company and appointed as the Chairman respectively.
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As a result, from 11 May 2018 to 13 July 2023, the roles of Chairman
and President were assumed by Mr. Yang Weihong.

The Board has been continuously reviewing the effectiveness of the
corporate governance structure of the Group, and identifying suitable
candidates according to the needs of business development of the
Company. At the fourth (temporary) meeting of the sixth session of
the Board of the Company held on 13 July 2023, Mr. Yang Weihong
resigned as the general manager of the Company due to work
arrangements, and Ms. Ma Xin was appointed as the deputy general
manager (presiding work) of the Company at the fourth (temporary)
meeting of the sixth session of the Board of the Company convened
on the same date. Her position is equivalent to that of chief executive.
On 25 January 2024, Ms. Ma Xin was appointed as the general
manager of the Company, which position is equivalent to that of chief
executive. Mr. Yang Weihong remains the executive Director and
Chairman of the Board. Accordingly, the Company has complied with
the requirements of code provision C.2.1.

TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

The terms of office of the Directors of the Company (including
independent non-executive Directors) are three years. All current
Directors will hold office until the expiry of the sixth session of the
Board. The Directors shall retire upon expiry of their terms of office and
shall be eligible for re-election.
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THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company has specific terms of reference in place,
with the authorities and responsibilities of each committee clearly
defined which have been published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

(1)

Audit committee

The Company has set up an audit committee pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
“Guidelines for the Establishment of Audit Committees” prepared
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid down in
writing under the requirements of Rule 5.29 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The audit committee currently comprises Prof. Cheng
Xinsheng (chairman), Mr. He Yongjun and Prof. Japhet Sebastian
Law (all being independent non-executive Directors), among
which Prof. Cheng Xinsheng has the relevant professional
qualification and financial experience. The members of the audit
committee convene meetings regularly with the management
and external auditors and review the internal audit report and
the quarterly, interim and annual results of the Group. The audit
committee reviewed the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and recommended approval to the
Board. In 2023, the audit committee held a total of four meetings
to review the financial information and the risk management
and internal control system etc. of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the audit committee.
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Remuneration committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM
Listing Rules and its duties and responsibilities have been
properly laid down in writing under the requirements of Rule
5.35 of the GEM Listing Rules. The remuneration committee
currently comprises Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (Chairman), Prof.
Cheng Xinsheng and Mr. Peng Zuowen (all being independent
non-executive Directors). The remuneration committee is
mainly responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors,
supervisors and senior management of the Company and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy, reviewing and approving
the management’s remuneration proposals with reference
to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
(which include benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or
termination of their office or appointment) of individual executive
Directors and senior management. In 2023, the remuneration
committee held six meetings to review the remuneration of
Directors, supervisors and senior management of the Company,
the withdrawal of annual performance-based bonus of the
Company, administrative measures for the remuneration of all
management officers and the total annual remuneration of the all
management officers, and the performance-managed methods
for managers appointment of the Company and the targets
responsibility letter, and recommend to the Board. For the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the remuneration committee.

(2)
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3)

Nomination committee

The Company has also set up a nomination committee which
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified as a director
or member and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and succession of Directors. The
nomination committee currently comprises three members,
with Mr. Yang Weihong (Chairman) being the chairman and
Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law and Mr. Peng Zuowen being the
members. Mr. Yang Weihong is the executive Director of the
Company, and the other members of the nomination committee
are independent non-executive Directors of the Company. In
2023, the nomination committee held two meetings to review
the Board of the Company for the year 2023 and execute the
provisions on the nomination of the Directors under the Articles
and the policies, procedures and criteria of the “Procedures for
Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a Director ( €%

RIBANEZEESZWIERF) )

After the resignation of Ms. Peng Bo on 15 September 2022, all
the members on the Board of the Company are male members,
therefore the Company failed to comply with the requirements
set out in the Rule 17.104 of the GEM Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the Company has been identifying female candidate who was
suitable to qualify as director or member to meet the gender
diversity requirements of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(3)

TEERRE
REEEE
ExgNUIREZBEE BER

8 MR 5L

]

MEESEMEE - AL
TMEA R REmMBRYEESE
PREBRIEZ  VEeAEESE
BERIETESHHNENA LI
ERRBAEBALTHEEST I
MESSREER  FTEBILIERR
TEENBIM  UREBERES
I EFZERECEETERE
EgRIER REZTEERAE=
ZRE  EREGELAEE(ER)
ZEABRNEHE RN GE -
BEAAEARARARNITES M
HtieRZ BB AARRR B
FEHITEE - N 2023F - REEE
FRIT2RNGH - FHRQF20283F
EEEE  WHITARAERFH
REBRARTEUR(REIRSE A
B2RFENBRF)IEREK  BRFK
2R -

202269 A15H &%) & + & T
& AREEEEKEEHTASH
KB - FIL AR R REERFE GEM £
MRAFEI7104EFTE R E - K
o ARR—EEYEAEAEE
BAETESERHENTEAL
LR ESE MRS ESR -

2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

75



76

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Company appointed 2 new directors in 2023, namely Ms.
Sun Jing and Ms. Meng Jun. The nomination committee’s
involvement process and its considerations are as follow:

1. The nomination committee learned from industry research
that Ms. Sun Jing has extensive experience in asset
management, project investment and believed that Ms.
Sun Jing’s skills and knowledge can complement the
professional background of the composition of the Board
in these areas. This could bring a new perspective to the
business development of the Company and enhance the
diversity of the Board.

2. Mr. Jo Shibin resigned as a non-executive director
of the Company on 21 June 2023. According to the
recommendation of Chia Tai Company, a shareholder
of the Company, Ms. Meng Jun was recommended as
candidate of non-executive Director of the Company.
The nomination committee has considered the unique
experience and backgrounds of Ms. Meng Jun in areas of
project investment, financial and corporation management
in accordance with the Company’s business needs, and
considers that she is qualified to serve as non-executive
Director of the Company.

Further, the addition of Ms. Sun Jing and Ms. Meng Jun will
increase the proportion of female members on the Board,
increase the number of Directors under the age of 50 and
increase the proportion of Directors with a term of 0-3 years,
which are in line with the board diversity policy of the Company.
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The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 26 March 2019, which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as a Director. The nomination committee
shall consider the following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

1. Character and integrity;

2. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

3. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board;

4. Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

5. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the
Company and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

6. Other views that are appropriate to the Company’s business
or as suggested by the Board.
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The procedure of nomination by the nomination committee is
summarised as follows:

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an
additional Director, the nomination committee identifies or
selects candidates as recommended to it, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out above;

3. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the nomination committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable);

4.  The nomination committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

5. The Board deliberates and decides on the appointment

based upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee.
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The procedure of re-appointment of Director at general meeting
is summarised as follows:

1. In accordance with the Articles, every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and shall be eligible for re-election at the shareholders’
general meeting;

2.  The nomination committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director. The nomination committee shall also review the
expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
Director, who offered himself/herself for re-appointment at
the shareholders’ general meeting, to determine whether
such Director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above; and

3. Based on the review made by nomination committee, the
Board shall make recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for reappointment at the shareholders’
general meeting of the Company, and provide the
available biographical information of the retiring Director
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules to enable
shareholders to make the informed decision on the re-
appointment of such candidates at shareholders’ general
meeting of the Company.

According to the Articles, shareholders who individually or in
aggregate holding 5% or more of the total number of voting
shares issued by the Company may make a written proposal to
the shareholders’ general meeting to nominate the candidates for
the Board, but the number of the candidates shall comply with
the Articles and shall not exceed the number of candidates to be
selected.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practice.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company considers diversity at the Board level
as an important element to maintain a competitive advantage. In
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Board adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 10 May
2019. The Company’s Board Diversity Policy will have significant
benefits in enhancing the performance of the Company. Under the
Board Diversity Policy, selection to the Board will be based on a
range of diversity areas, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All appointments to the Board will be made on the basis of
merit and the benefits of diversity on the Board will be objectively taken
into account when considering candidates. During the year ended 31
December 2023, there are two female members on the Board of the
Company. The following chart shows the the profile of diversity on the
Board as at 31 December 2023:

Gender
eyt Female
egid

Executive director

N
[

EFEZ VIR
BRAEEEHEIERDEER  ~NAF
BRESEEANZTELAERRTED
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M2019F5 10 RMNEST S L LK
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E2L U EBERBEIRAARRFNRIRAE
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2028F 12 ATHEEENEZ LM
B

Male

Type of HITES
osition Non-executive director
e B S
BRI Independent non-executive director
BAIEITES
Under 50
Age 50 AR
FHR
Above 60
60 A E
0to3
Tenure 0-39
(E8:0 4108
4-8
Over 9 years
KR 9 F
0 1 2 3 4 5 6
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s workforce
generally follows a diversity philosophy that includes gender diversity.
The gender composition of the Group’s workforce is set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report. As at the date of
this report, over 20% of the Group’s employees are female and
two of the three senior management of the Company are female.
As the Company already has a higher proportion of females in the
same industry, the Company plans to maintain the same level of
female representation over the next three years or increase female
representation where appropriate.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and senior management since May 2023.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2023, the supervisory committee comprised six
members, of whom three are shareholder representative supervisors
and three are employee representative supervisors. The responsibility
of the supervisory committee is to monitor the Board and its
members and senior management so as to protect the interests of
the shareholders. In 2023, the supervisory committee had monitored
the financial position and the legal compliance of the operations of
the Company and has conducted due diligence review of the senior
management by convening meetings of supervisory committee and
attending Board meetings and general meetings. It has duly performed
its duties in a detailed and prudent manner.
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INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and the assets of the Group. The internal
control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient
management which in turn minimizes the risks to which the Group is
exposed. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

The Group recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term development of the Group’s business. Management
is responsible for the establishment, implementation, review and
assessment of the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. After taking into full
account of the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules
relating to risk management and internal control, the management
continued to improve its existing control and risk management
framework. All employees are committed to implementing the risk
management framework into the daily operation.

The Company has established a dedicated legal affairs and internal
audit department and engaged an external professional legal agency
to assist the audit committee and the Board in determining the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
on an annual and ongoing basis. In 2023, the Company further
standardized the audit work process. In accordance with the
annual audit plan, the Company carried out a special audit on the
maintenance and reinforcement project of Bei Gang Depot Transit
Warehouse to standardize the management of the project, and check
the compliance and economy of the maintenance and renovation
project of such warehouse. Meanwhile, the Company carried out two
economic responsibility audits and an operational performance audit
of wholly-owned subsidiaries to promote compliance management
and enhance operational management of wholly-owned subsidiaries.
With the targets of standardizing management, improving internal
control and preventing risks, the Company has completed the first
internal audit of Tianjin TEDA Alps and Gangwan Automobile, which
both are our investee companies. For the problems found in the audit,
the Company supervised the rectification of audited departments,
carefully reviewed the rectification plans and the rectification results,
timely communication and confirmation of key issues to ensure that
the rectification is in place.
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In 2023, the Board highly emphasized on internal control and risk
management, the Company continuously improved and consolidated
the achievements of the risk system development based on the
development of the “risk management and control quality project”
system established in 2021. During the reporting period, it strives to
achieve the objective of monitoring risks, implementing standards, and
supervising processes so as to prevent potential risks in the business
of the Company and its subsidiaries in an all-round manner.

Objectives of risk management and internal control

The objectives of establishing the risk management and internal
control framework of the Group are to identify, assess and manage the
risk of the Group and achieve the Group’s strategic objectives within
the acceptable safety standards. The Group has further promoted
digitalisation of its internal control management while improving
its systems. The “smart operational management platform” for the
integration of business and finance developed by the Company will
automatically consolidate business information and match it with
financial data to avoid isolation of business and financial information;
deliver real-time monitoring of capital through funding plans and
cash management; enable coordination and verification, grading
and preparation, screening and conclusion, monitoring and early
warning through budget management; improve corporate capital
control through deeper integration of capital planning and budget
management. The establishment of the smart operational management
platform, with “uniform financial accounting, uniform capital control,
uniform business and financial integration, and uniform digital
resources”, will facilitate in-depth integration of business and finance,
enhance the timeliness and accuracy of business data acquisition,
and deliver smart reform in the management of the Company. The
smart operational management platform, together with the Company’s
OA system, will establish and reinforce the logical relationship of the
internal authorization system so as to control and mitigate risks.

Meanwhile, a three-line risk management approach has been adopted
to identify, analyze, assess, mitigate and handle risks.

The first line of defence is that our department staff/frontline employees
must understand that their roles and responsibilities to identify, assess
and monitor risks associated with transactions.
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The second line of defence is the Group’s management that provides
independent oversight of the risk management activities of the first line
of defence. It ensures that risks are within the Group’s risk capacity
and that the control of the first line of defence is effective.

As the final line of defence, the audit committee of the Company, with
the advices and opinions from the external professional party (such
as the external auditor) on one hand and annual review by the audit
department on the other hand, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective internally and externally.

Procedures and internal control for handling and dissemination
of inside information

The Company has adopted the GEM Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) to handle and disseminate inside information. The Company
ensured compliance in respect of the handling and dissemination of
inside information by adopting a series of measures including enhancing
identification and confidentiality awareness of inside information,
prohibiting unauthorized use of inside information and giving notice of
lock-up period and securities dealing restrictions to the Directors and
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has made announcements on inside information in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations.

In light of the above, the Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting:

The shareholder(s) (either independently or jointly) holding 3% or more
of the Company’s voting shares shall be entitled to propose temporary
proposal(s) 10 days before the convening of the shareholders’ meeting
and in writing to the Company. The Company shall notify other
shareholders within 2 days upon receipt of such proposal(s), and
include in the agenda for the meeting the matters in the proposal(s)
that fall within the scope of functions and rights of the shareholders’
general meeting and with a clear topic of discussion and a specific
matter to be resolved.
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Shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary general
meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:

(1) two or more shareholders holding a total of 10% or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be
held may sign one or more written requests of identical form and
substance requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes
and stating the subject of the meeting. The Board shall convene
the extraordinary general meeting or the meeting of shareholders
of different classes as soon as possible after having received
the above-mentioned written request. The shareholding referred
to above shall be calculated as of the day on which the written
request is made.

(2) if the Board fails to issue a notice of such a meeting within thirty
days after having received the above-mentioned written request,
the shareholders who made such request may themselves
convene the meeting within four months after the Board received
the request. The procedures according to which they convene
such meeting shall, to the extent possible, be identical to the
procedures according to which general meetings are to be
convened by the Board.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the following person whose contact details
are as follows:

Name : Yang Xueyan

Address : Third Floor Office Building, No. 39, Bohai Road, Tianjin
Economic and Technological Development Zone

Tel : 022-59858128

Fax : 022-59858100

Postal Code : 300457

E-mail . investor@tbtl.com.cn
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). The Company endeavours to maintain sufficient operating
capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and to provide
stable and sustainable returns to its shareholders.

In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the performance, working
capital, cash position of the Group and other factors that the Directors
deem relevant at the time.

The declaration and payment of dividends of the Company are also
subject to restrictions of the “PRC Company Law ( {FEIRAENE) )
and the Articles and any other applicable laws and regulations. The
Board will also constantly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
discretion to update, revise, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy
at any time. The Dividend Policy will not in any way constitute a legally
binding commitment of the Group in relation to its future dividends
and/or will not in any way render the Company obligated to declare
dividends at any time or from time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to encouraging and maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with shareholders through the dynamic implementation of a
shareholder’s communication policy through various channels. The
Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity
for the Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. All
Directors make their best efforts to attend the Annual General Meeting
in order to answer questions from the Company’s shareholders.
In accordance with the disclosure requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company makes timely, accurate and complete
disclosure of any discloseable and material matters in newspapers
and websites designated by the relevant regulatory authorities to
protect the shareholders’ right to information and participation. The
Company also has a dedicated department responsible for investor
relations, the contact details of which are set out in the section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights” above. The Company attaches great
importance to communication with investors and has hosted individual
shareholders at various shareholder meetings and answered their
telephone enquiries on a number of occasions to enhance investors’
understanding of and confidence in the Company.
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The Board reviews the effectiveness of the above channels of
communication between the Company and its shareholders on an
annual basis. The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Company’s activities in communicating with
shareholders and investors during the reporting period.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period by the management, and issuing
appropriate announcements in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules for disclosure of all information necessary for the shareholders to
assess the financial performance and other matters of the Company.

The Company has appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the international auditor of the Company for the year 2023. Fees
for audit and non-audit service provided to the Group by the above-
mentioned auditor for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to
RMB1,194,000 and RMBO (there was no non-audit service provided)
respectively.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation
of the financial statements which can truthfully and fairly reflect
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to
the International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the “Companies Ordinance ( {2 @H1&HI) )” in Hong
Kong.

The statements made by the independent auditors of the Company
on their responsibilities for the financial statements are set out in the
independent auditors’ report in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo”) as
company secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the
reporting period, he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training, and will continue to perform and discharge the
duties of a company secretary under the GEM Listing Rules. Mr.
Lo is not an employee of the Group, and Ms. Zhao Chunyan, the
Vice General Manager of the Company, is the person whom Mr. Lo
contacts for the purpose of Code Provision C.6.1.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

EEeRFRANEARRERENER
REZAW - EFGHARBRARE
HRETHERR RIREEBRAEE 2
B RABERTME

SR 2

FEEE R EE TR B R
BRETE - EEERREGEM LD
SRR e A - AR B BT A
AR BN R R BT LE Y 2 0E
B o

RAARELZEBEE SR EMA AR AR
YERZARAF) 2023 F [E BIFRIZ8RAD o it
ZEMRE E2023F 12 A1 A ILFE
MASEBRENEZRIIFEZRBKE
D RlAEANRE1,194,000 T M ARO T
(W IR IEEERTE) o

ARREFRBEREERT B REER R
EECRAHEPDH R ER ERBAIEE R
N IR BR AN A R S BB R B B AR
2R -

ZAUNCIE VR 3 LR a2 R B
EHE 2B SR AIRE 2B A

W& o

A= ES
RABINERIS HER IR WM E R -
VWEEEBRFLEE(BEEDEER
AWE  BEERBEGITRAEEE -
BREEHMABFERELEHARNELZ2NT LR
15/ NEERIAERE B T - WA EERIE
GEM EMRAIBITRBITRARIME R
B o BEAEWHEAEBNEES - AAFE
BEIREER T T RESCERTRIEE
C.6.1 &1 5 BB AR A ©

2023 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

87



88

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, the Company proposed to amend the
Articles and such amendments were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 12 April 2023. Such amendments to the Articles were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting held on 12 May 2023.

The new Articles is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meeting of the Company has the highest authority. A total
of 2 general meetings were held in 2023. The Company convened an
annual general meeting on 12 May 2023 to consider and approve the
resolutions relating to Directors’ Report for 2022 and Report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2022. The Chairman of the Board and the
members of each committee attended the annual general meeting
held in 2023, so as to answer questions raised by shareholders.
In addition, chairman of the audit committee has attended the
annual general meeting held in 2023 to answer questions raised by
shareholders. The Company highly values the functions of the general
meeting as it is considered to be a direct and effective communication
channel between the Board and investors of the Company, and
thus encourages all shareholders to attend the general meetings.
The Articles have laid out provisions in respect of the rights of the
shareholders including the rights to attend, to receive notices of, and
to vote at general meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
logistics services in China, mainly including supply chain solutions and
materials procurement and related logistics services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the Year and a
discussion on the Company’s future business development are
provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this
annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Company may be facing can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. Also, the financial risk factors
and capital risk management of the Company can be found in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Company’s
performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the section headed “Financial Review”
of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers are contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Company is contained in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The financial highlights of the reporting period are set out on page 5
to 6 of this annual report. Discussion and analysis of the results and
financial position of the Group are set out on pages 7 to 18 of this
annual report. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is set out on pages 126 to 127 of this annual
report.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of financial position of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023 prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs”) are set out on pages 128 to
129 of this annual report.

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB29,778,000 and RMB23,794,000, respectively.
The Board proposes the payment of a final dividend of RMBO0.02 per
share for the year ended 31 December 2023 (corresponding period of
2022: RMBO0.03 per share).

RETAINED EARNINGS

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the reporting period and details of the distributable reserves of
the Company as at 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
IFRSs.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS

Details of the statutory reserve funds are set out in Note 21(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of movements in properties of the Group in the Company
during the reporting period are set out in Note 14 to Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out on page 256
to 259 of this report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

There was no material contract between the Group and the controlling
shareholder or its subsidiaries during the Year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary including the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial Summary” of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the Year, the Company did not made investment for
establishment of other new company, nor did it increase or withdraw
any capital to or from its invested subsidiaries or associates.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company had no
capitalised interest (2022: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company completed the conversion of 256,068,800 domestic
unlisted shares into H shares on 26 October 2023. Save as disclosed,
during the reporting period, there was no change in the Company’s
share capital. Details are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles
which requires the Company to offer new shares in proportion to
existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and supervisors in office during the Year and up to the

date of this report are as follows:

EBERES

EEWT

RAFEARBEAREAPETEER

Date of
appointment

EZEWEH

Executive Director
Yang Weihong (Chairrman)
Ma Xin

Non-executive Directors

Li Jian

Meng Jun

Sun Jing

Jo Shibin (resigned on 21 June 2023)

Zhang Yan
(resigned on 25 January 2024)
Zhou Zhiyuan (retired on 12 May 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheng Xinsheng

He Yongjun

Japhet Sebastian Law

Peng Zuowen

Supervisors
Wang Guanghua
Yan Jun

Yang Zhengliang
Huang Fei

Lan Lingyan
Wang Linlin

HITES
BR(EFER)
B

FHITES

2

=EE

R

BREB(ER 2023 F
6 421 HEHT)

kK (2R 2024 F
1425 HEHE)

BEE(ER2023F
5/ 12 HRT)

BAUFHITES
et
BT
SR
FAEX

E=x
FoeE
M=
BIERR
R3S

T 3

12 May 2023
25 January 2024

12 May 2023
21 June 2023
12 May 2023
12 May 2023

12 May 2023

15 September 2022

12 May 2023
12 May 2023
12 May 2023
12 May 2023

12 May 2023
12 May 2023
12 May 2023
28 April 2023
28 April 2023
28 April 2023

R2023F5H12H
R 202441 H25H

M2023%F5H12H
202346 A21H
MR2023%5 [ 12 H
R2023%F 512 H

R2023F5H12H

R2022F9 A15H

M2023%F5H12H
R2023%F 5[ 12 H
MR2023%5 [ 12 H
M20283F 512 H

2023512 H
M2023%F5H12H
R2023%F 5[ 12 H
20234 4 28 H
MR 20234 4 A28 H
2023 4 28 H
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and confirmed that
all the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
independent persons.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save for contracts amongst companies of the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director or a supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with the Director or the supervisor has or had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company at any time during the Year.

CHANGE OF DIRECTOR, SUPERVISOR OR CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND CHANGE IN INFORMATION

On 13 July 2023, Mr. Yang Weihong resigned as the general manager
of the Company due to work arrangements. For details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 13 July 2023. Save as
disclosed above and as at the date of this report, the Company is not
aware of any change in the information of director, supervisor or chief
executive required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the
GEM Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group abides by the local laws, regulations and guidelines
issued by the government authorities and puts great emphasis on
environmental protection during the course of operation. The Group
made efforts to improve logistics efficiency, optimized transportation
routes and transportation modes, promoted railway and waterway
transportation due to less discharge of pollutants, and strictly adhered
to the principle of recycle and resource conservation, especially the
recycling of packaging materials.
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Our main stakeholders include the customers, suppliers and
employees. We enhance communication with its stakeholders through
day-to-day interactions, and thereby enabling it to understand and
satisfy their respective needs. We place great importance on the
feedbacks of its customers, and improves the quality of its services
and maintenance work based on these advices. We also recognize the
importance of its relationship with the suppliers and the employees.
We have established a trust relationship with its brand suppliers. It also
provides various trainings and benefits for its employees to develop
their potentials, and moves quickly to solve any potential work issues
for them. Further details on the environmental policy and performance
are set out in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
which forms a part of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and senior management since May 2023 in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising out
of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As at the date of this report, no equity-linked agreements of the
Company were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 9
to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

The remuneration offered to the Directors, supervisors and senior
management shall be determined based on, among other things,
individual experience, responsibility and time devoted to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company had any interest and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were (a) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and supervisors are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As of 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives held any beneficial interests in the equity interests of any
member of the Group, or had any right (whether legally enforceable
or not) to subscribe for or to nominate others to subscribe for any
securities in any member of the Group, or had any interest, directly or
indirectly, in any assets acquired or leased or proposed to be acquired
since 1 January 2023.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS HOLDING
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, supervisors and chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 December 2023, the following persons had
interests or short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or had, directly or indirectly, been interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meeting of the Company; or which were
required to be recorded in the register specified in Section 336 of the
SFO pursuant to such Section:

Long position in shares of the Company
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Number of the Company’s
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Name Capacity (Note 1) share capital

RAERAF

HRIRGEE BRITRAEH

£ 51 (FffzE1) RREHSAEIL

Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner 150,420,051 (L) 42.45%
REFEREEREGR AT BB A 150,420,051 f% (L)

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,303,789 (L) 21.82%

Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

FARBERE (LR BRAF BERFAEA 77,303,789 % (L)

Chia Tai Land Company Limited Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 8%
EREMBRAT BafiAA 28,344,960 % (L)

Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 20,000,000 (L) 5.64%

REBHERERAR AR

BESRAA

20,000,000 A% (L)
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On 7 June 2013, Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. and
Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area State Asset
Operation Company transferred their 28,344,960 and 77,303,789
domestic shares of the Company to Chia Tai Land Company Limited
and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. respectively,
and the share transfers were completed. So far as is known to the
Directors, chief executives and supervisors of the Company, as at 31
December 2023, the deemed interests of Chia Tai Land Company
Limited, Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and

their associates under Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

MR2013F6 A7H KEREXRELR
E@@Tﬂ%i%@&ﬁﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ
ERERADBEEEAARRNERK
28,344,960 % & 77,303,789 % i ;% 45 1IE
AREMERARIRIEARELE (LF)E
RAR BDBEFERK - BALRRE
FFTETBABRESAHM - %2023
F12H31H  EXEMBRAA - EX
BENE QLR BRAFREBBALR
BHRHERGIEXVHBETHRIEER
|

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to

Number of the Company’s
H shares total issued
Name Capacity (Note 1) share capital
P N
HER R EE ERITRAEH
8B 514 (fieE1) FEREHOBEIL
Chia Tai Land Company Limited Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 8%
EREHERAA EnlEAA 28,344,960 f% (L)
Fortune (Shanghai) Limited Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 8%
controlled by a
substantial shareholder
ER(E8)ARA FTERRZIEEEER 28,344,960 % (L)
Charoen Pokphand Group Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 8%
(BVI) Holdings Limited controlled by a
substantial shareholder
EXREEBV)ERERA FERRZIEEEER 28,344,960 % (L)
CPG Overseas Company Limited Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 8%
controlled by a
substantial shareholder
CPG Overseas Company Limited FERRAZIEE S 28,344,960 % (L)
Charoen Pokphand Group Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 8%

Co., Ltd.

NEEEARAR]

controlled by a
substantial shareholder
FERRNZIEEE E

28,344,960 A& (L)
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to

Number of the Company’s

H shares total issued

Name Capacity (Note 1) share capital

P N

HERRHEE BERITRAEH

£ 514 (FfzE1) FREHMYBSL

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,308,789 (L) 21.82%

Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

ERHERE (L) BRAF ERBEBA 77,303,789 f% (L)

Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited Interest of corporation 77,303,789 (L) 21.82%

controlled by a
substantial shareholder

PR HEFR AR I BRI LB R

77,303,789 % (L)

Note:

1. The letter “L” denotes the shareholders’ long position in the share capital
of the Company. On 26 October 2023, the Company has completed the
conversion of 256,068,800 unlisted domestic shares into H shares.

Save as disclosed in this report, so far as is known to the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company, as at 31 December
2023, no other persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
or supervisors of the Company) had interests or short positions which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or had, directly or indirectly,
been interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company and/or any subsidiary of the Company; or
which were required to be recorded in the register specified in Section
336 of the SFO pursuant to such Section.
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SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS INCENTIVE SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has no arrangement for
such scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, the percentages of income of the Group
from sales of goods and provision of services to major customers to
the turnover of the Group are as follows:

Fujian Zhanglong Group Co., Ltd.
FAW Toyota Logistics (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.

Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd.
Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd.

China Commerce & Logistics Co., Ltd.
Five largest customers in total
During the reporting period, the percentages of expenses of the Group

arising from the purchase of goods and services from major suppliers
to the cost of sales of the Group are as follows:

Wu’an Yuhua Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.
Tangshan Fengnan Dongyu Commercial Trade Co., Ltd.

Anhui Shoukuang Dachang Metal Material Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Nangang Supply Chain Technology Co., Ltd.

Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd.

Five largest suppliers in total

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers or
customers.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates has
interest in business that competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group or has any other conflicts of interests with the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into continuing connected transactions with
the following entities which are regarded as connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules as of 31 December 2023.

Toyota Tsusho Corporation, which holds approximately 36.2% interest
in Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. (“Fengtian Logistics”), a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is a substantial shareholder
of a subsidiary of the Company. Under the GEM Listing Rules, Toyota
Tsusho Corporation is a connected person of the Company.

Details in relation to the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2023 are as
follows:

Continuing connected transactions

Fengtian Logistics and Toyota Tsusho Corporation renewed a
logistics service agreement (the “Logistics Service Agreement”) on
22 December 2022, pursuant to which Fengtian Logistics agreed to
provide logistics services and supply chain solutions for automobiles
and car components to Toyota Tsusho Corporation, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2023 to 31 December 2025. The Logistics
Service Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were in compliance with the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules, and were exempted from the circular, independent
financial advice and the shareholders’ approval requirements. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22
December 2022.
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ANNUAL CAP AND ACTUAL FIGURE OF NON-EXEMPTED BRI oIt iERERSMN
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF THE FELIIERRESEH=F

COMPANY
Annual cap  Actual Figure
for 2023 for 2023
2023 F 2023 F
FELR EBERZBLER
RMB’000 RMB’000
Description of transaction RS AR¥T T ARBET T
Logistics Service Agreement 0 AR 745 15 7% 15,400 5,573

The independent non-executive Directors, Cheng Xinsheng, He B IFRTESREHE  MBFE - B4
Yongjun, Japhet Sebastian Law and Peng Zuowen, have reviewed RE/EXEEMN LMFERESS @ W
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that they RABERER S :

have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (1)

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no more favourable to  (2)
the connected person than those available to the independent
third parties or on terms no less favourable to the Company than
terms available from independent third parties (as appropriate);
and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements with terms which are  (3)
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders as a
whole.

In addition, the Group has duly complied with the requirements under 2 4) -

EAKBEER —REHHEIL

B—REGIRRE R EEATRE
ZAERTERERBL % =T ef
B R R S [R) AR 1 RHE A 2 1R KT
RARAEIEILE =T BE M HRR
ETRFBERME) + K

R AR 1T - TR B
BATFARAFARREBA. -

AREB BB ETGEM LT R AIE
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on pages 101 to 103 of the annual report in accordance with
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of
the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements (if any)
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, or redeemed or sold or
cancelled any listed securities of the Company.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has, up to the date of this
report, maintained the public float required by the GEM Listing Rules
and approved by the Stock Exchange.

TRUST DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2023, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries placed any trust deposits with any financial institutions
within or outside the PRC.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER CHAPTER 17 OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would give rise
to a disclosure requirement under Rules 17.15 to 17.21 and 17.43 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Yang Weihong
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 18 March 2024
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Dear Shareholders:

Pursuant to the “Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the articles of association of the Company and the relevant regulations
regarding Hong Kong listed companies, the supervisory committee of
the Company (the “Supervisory Committee”), under its fiduciary duty,
has taken up a responsible role to work reasonably and cautiously
with integrity and diligence to protect the interests of the Company, its
shareholders and staff.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee duly reviewed the
operational and development plans of the Company, the supervisors
made their best endeavours to attend each Board meeting and
general meeting held in 2023 and provided reasonable opinions and
recommendations to the Board. It also constantly monitored the
Company’s financial status and administered the code of practices
of the Directors, the General Manager and other senior management.
The Supervisory Committee has made stringent and effective
supervision on whether any material and concrete decision made by
the management of the Company is in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company,
and whether it is in the interests of its shareholders.

Through its efforts made on supervision and inspections during 2023,
the Supervisory Committee considered that the members of the
Board, the General Manager and other senior management of the
Company, during the course of business operation and management,
all strictly observed their fiduciary duties, to act diligently and to
exercise their authority faithfully under the premise of safeguarding the
best interests of the Company. They carried out duties in accordance
with the requirements set out in the articles of association of the
Company. During the reporting period, the Company carried out
operations according to the law with a standardised management
style, and its operating results were objective and true. The Company
had an integral, reasonable and effective internal control system,
and its operation decision-making process was legal. The continuing
connected transactions of the Company have been carried out on
fair and reasonable terms that are in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole, and no violation to the interests of the
shareholders and the Company has been found.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EEeRE

The Supervisory Committee has exercised supervision over the
execution of the resolutions of the general meeting and considers
that the Board is capable of executing the resolutions of the general
meeting diligently.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance and
the operating results achieved by the Company in 2023, and has full
confidence in the future development of the Company.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee of the Company will
continue to perform its duties pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations by adhering to the fiduciary duties and strengthening its
supervisory work so as to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Company and the shareholders, fuffil its responsibility in an honest and
diligent manner and hence achieve good performance in every aspect.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Guanghua
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 18 March 2024
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES EENREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Weihong (& 4L), aged 55, joined the Company on
20 March 2018 and as appointed as the general manager of the
Company (which is equivalent to the position of chief executive),
and was appointed as the executive Director and Chairman of the
Company on 11 May 2018. He graduated from the Department of
Computing Mathematics and Its Application Software of the Faculty of
Mathematics of Nankai University in July 1990 with a science bachelor
degree, and graduated with a master’s degree in public management
from Renmin University of China in 2005 and graduated from the
School of Law of Nankai University with a master’s degree in law (civil
law and business law) in 2008. He served as a staff at the planning
department of Tianjin Dynamic Factory (KZ8) H# st EIEE) from
July 1990 to October 1992, a clerk at Tianjin Talent Exchange and
Service Center (REM A A A MAREF L) from October 1992 to June
1995, and worked at the Labor Personnel Bureau of Tianjin Economic
and Technological Development Area from June 1995 to June 2002,
where he held various positions including a clerk at the Employment
Agency (B2 4R FT), deputy director of the General Office (presiding),
head of the Labor Protection Supervision Department (45 E/{x & &5
22%}), head of the Special Equipment Inspection and Management
Station (FF7E =& 4% 81 & IR 1), head of the Social Security Division (tt
ZIRERY), etc. From 2002 to March 2018, he worked for Tianjin TEDA
Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and held various positions including
deputy manager of the Human Resources Department (presiding),
the manager, director of the General Office and the head of the Party
Committee office, etc. During the period, he also served as the director
and a member of the appraisal and remuneration committee of the
board of directors of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., and
served as the director of Tianjin Teda Football Club Co., Ltd. (K/#Z
7 R EKELEEI AR /A R)). He resigned as the general manager of the
Company in July 2023. Currently, he serves as the Secretary of the
Party General Branch, Chairman of the Company and the chairman
of Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd., Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics
Co., Ltd., Tianjin Teda Alps Logistics Co., Ltd. and Dalian Alps Teda
Logistics Co., Ltd. (all being subsidiaries of the Group).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B EENeREEE

Ms. Ma Xin (5/iX), aged 40, joined the Company in July 2023 and
was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company
(presiding work), and then as the executive Director and general
manager of the Company on 25 January 2024 (which is equivalent to
the position of chief executive). She graduated from Nankai University
majoring in logistics with a master’s degree in economics. She was a
senior auditor of Deloitte Huayong Accounting Firm Limited in Tianjin,
the minister of finance and assistant to general manager of Tianjin
Jinran Public Utilities Company Limited (HKEX, stock code: 01265),
the manager of financial management department of the Finance
Center of Southern Entrepreneurship (Tianjin) Technology Development
Co., Ltd., the assistant to the minister of the asset management
department of Tianjin Tsinlien Investment Holding Co., Ltd. And the
chief financial officer of Tianjin Teda Asset Operation Management Co.,
Ltd. She is currently the deputy secretary of Party Branch, executive
Director, and general manager of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jian (Z{#), aged 44, joined the Company in May 2019. He
graduated from Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 2001
with a bachelor’s degree in management engineering. He served as
the Accounting Manager of the Enterprise Management Department
of Beijing Capital Agribusiness Group, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
of the Finance Department of Hulunbeier Sanyuan Dairy Co., Ltd.,
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Finance Department of Beijing
Taiyang Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd., the Senior Manager of the
Finance Department of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Group and the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of CPTP Capital. He is currently the Deputy
General Manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Meng Jun (&), aged 44, joined the Company in June 2023.
Member of China Zhigong Party, member of Beijing Youth Working
Committee of China Zhigong Party, member of Beijing Tongzhou
Youth Federation, fund practitioner of Asset Management Association
of China, Certified Management Accountant of the United States
(CMA). She graduated from Jilin University with a bachelor’s degree
in international trade in 2001 and graduated from University of Bath
in the United Kingdom with a Master’s degree in corporate finance in
2002. She has worked as the investment manager of the international
business department of Delong International Strategic Investment
Co., Ltd., and the assistant to the president of Chia Tai Land Co., Ltd.
She is currently the senior vice president of Chia Tai Bright Investment
Co., Ltd. and also holds key positions in the Edge Fund established
by Chia Tai and a Japanese investment organization, as well as the
Vietnam Development Investment Fund established by Chia Tai and a
Vietnamese investment organization.

Ms. Sun Jing (&), aged 43, joined the Company in May 2023,
holding the title of economist. In 2008, she graduated from St. Mary’s
University in Canada, majoring in finance, and obtained a master’s
degree. She served as an office deputy director of Tianjin Teda
Gas Company Limited* (KEZREMRERE LA F]), a member
of the asset management department of Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holdings Company Limited and a director of Tianjin Binhai Energy
& Development Co., Ltd* (KEEEFLREZERKRMHER AR (stock
code: 000695, Shenzhen Stock Exchange). She is currently the
deputy general manager of the asset management department of
Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co., Ltd., a director of Tianjin TEDA
Industrial Group Co., Ltd.* (REFREE X LB BRRAR]), Tanjn Teda
Assets Operation Management Co., Ltd.* (K 2REZEEEESEIEAR
/A a]) and Tianjin Teda Construction Group Co., Ltd..
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Prof. Cheng Xinsheng (2#74), aged 61, joined the Company
in June 2014. He is a Doctor and Postdoc of Management. From
2004 to 2005, he was the visiting scholar of University of Alberta in
Canada and the professional editor of Nankai Business Review and
was honored with the awards of outstanding result in social science
for several times. In 1994, he became a fellow member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was in charge of four
research projects in management funded by National Natural Science
Foundation and four projects funded by the Foundation of the Ministry
of Education. He also participated in over ten key topic projects
funded by National Natural Science Foundation, National Philosophy
and Social Science Foundation and the Humanities and Social
Sciences Foundation of the Ministry of Education. He has published
five books and over 50 articles and has a translated work. He was an
independent director of Offshore Oil Engineering Co., Ltd (Stock Code:
600583, Shanghai Stock Exchange). He is currently a Professor and
doctoral supervisor of Accounting Department of Business School of
Nankai University. He is also an independent director of CSSC (Handan)
Pairui Special Gas Co., Ltd. (Ff4 (HESB) IRIRIFERER M AR
2 7]) and Hua Xia Bank Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600015, Shanghai
Stock Exchange), an independent supervisor of China Qilfield Services
Limited (Stock Code: 601808, Shanghai Stock Exchange), and a
member of the Chinese Academy of Management.

WY IEMTES

B AE KR 615 R2014F6A°
MARRA - EREFL - FL1%&-
2004 F £2005%F - MEAMBEE KX
E (University of Alberta,Canada) &£
H(ERBEARIEXEETR ZRE
PHERIZ2EAEKRE 1994 F L B H
Hxfigstpees  IRHERAAR
BRESERSBMEARELIE  THHEF
ESRELITE  2NBRERVNBESSE
BRE BREBEHSRBESNHUE
HANHBESREZI10RE - HRE
E5E0  BRWM NS08 FE - EE 1Mo
FEREESFRBIERRNDBRAR RS
KHE : 600583 © L BBHRFFT)BULE
F o WRTHERAASHER SR -
ET A G o KI5 A M (HEED ) IR I
BRERNDERA REERITRMD
BRAR (MM SR - 600015+ EBEHFR
S)BYES - FEHBRBEROHER
ANE(BHARIS : 601808 ° EBEEFKH
FIBYEE  PRERARLECHARSE
$ °

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A



DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. He Yongjun ({18 &), aged 45, joined the Company in June 2022.
He graduated in Technical Economics and Management from Tianjin
University (&2 X 2) with a master’'s degree and a doctorate degree.
He served as the deputy general manager of Tianjin Haitai Advantage
Venture Capital Management Company Limited* (K)&/8Z= B 258l %
EEEAMRAT). He is currently the chairman of Tianjin Ruiyi Jinrong
Enterprise Management Consulting Company Limited* (K28 &£
AP EERFEHAR AR, the general manager of Tianjin Beiyang
Haitang Venture Capital Management Company Limited* (KZ1bL)F/&
HAIFEREEIRHIR A F), the partner of Beiyang Haitang Fund* (1t
JGEE ), the general manager of Tianjin University Science Park* (<
R ARBEHEE) (Nankai Park, Jinnan Park , Tiankai Park), the director
of Tianjin Science and Technology and Finance Center* (K2R %4
EiA L), and the chairman and the executive director of the Tianjin
Zhongzheng Logistics Company Limited* (K2 [E¥i7 A R A 7).
He is also an independent director of Tianjin Rianlon New Materials
Company Limited*(KZFZ B+ K% 5 BBR A 7)) (stock code:
300596, Shenzhen Stock Exchange ChiNext) and Tianjin King-meter
Technology Company Limited* (K2 KIFEHEIRH B R A F]) (stock
code: 872249, National Equities Exchange and Quotations).
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Prof. Japhet Sebastian Law (% 3 #F), aged 72, joined the Company
in August 2012. He obtained his Doctorate degree of Philosophy
in mechanical/industrial engineering from the University of Texas at
Austin in 1976. He was a professor of the Department of Decision
Sciences and Managerial Economics of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 1986 to 2012. Mr. Law was the Associate Dean
and subsequently the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration
of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993 to 2002. Prior to
returning to Hong Kong, he was the director of Operations Research
at the Cullen College of Engineering and director of Graduate Studies
in Industrial Engineering at the University of Houston, and was also
involved with the U.S. Space Program in his career with McDonnell
Douglas and Ford Aerospace in the United States. He was the
consultant of various corporations in Hong Kong and overseas.
He is also active in public services, having served as a member of
the Provisional Regional Council of The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and various other committees,
and is also active on the boards of profit, non-profit and charitable
organisations in Hong Kong and overseas. From July 2010 to July
2013, he was an independent non-executive director of Cypress
Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00875). From August
2013 to July 2016, he was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai La Chapelle Fashion Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 06116, Hong
Kong Stock Exchange). From June 2008 to June 2020, he was an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Capital International
Airport Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 00694, Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Port Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03382) (a company
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00078), Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 00639) and Binhai Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 02886) and Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 08271), and an independent supervisor of Beijing
Capital International Airport Company Limited (Stock Code: 00694), all
being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Peng Zuowen (Z1EX), aged 46, joined the Company in
November 2018, graduated in Information Management from Beijing
Forestry University (1t AR Z K E2) in July 2000. He had worked as
the Deputy Director of the Information Center of China Flower and
Gardening News ( {FREITEF ) {587 1Y), a newspaper affiiated to
the Economic Daily Newspaper Group (4% B i 2 5 ®). He is now
the General Manager of Zhongke Dianji (Beijing) Technology Company
Limited (FFRIZEE b )R ABR A 7)), the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Product Officer of Guoxin Youe Data Company Limited (12
BHERABMR AR, the Secretary of Big Data Applications Specialty
Association of China Software Industry Association, the Specially-
employed Expert of Beijing Forestry University Big Data Application
Engineering Laboratory and the Guest Professor of Internet Public
Sentiment of Communication University of China (4 B8 1% KX £48
wEIBEEE). He was the author of “Big Data Analysis by Industry”
( CREBUEDTTEARBEMN) ) and the business definer of “big data”. He
is dedicated to three key areas including the management and the
practical application of big data in various industries, the research
and practice and application of big data empowerment in urban
industrial development, and the construction and operation of smart
cities by new-generation information technologies. As a result of his
contribution to the aforesaid three key areas, he was interviewed in the
CCTV program “Beyond” (CCTV &) # E) and awarded with the
title “China Outstanding Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2017”.
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SUPERVISORS
Shareholder Representative Supervisors

Mr. Wang Guanghua (£ Y ), aged 39, joined the Company in May
2021 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Supervisory Board.
He is an accountant. He graduated from Jilin College of Construction
and Engineering with a bachelor’s degree in business administration
in 2007 and graduated from Jilin University with a master’s degree
in accounting in 2009. He has worked in Tianjin TEDA Investment
Holdings Co., Ltd. as a staff member of the Audit Department, a
staff member of the Office Secretary Section, a staff member of the
Board Office, a Deputy Director of the Board Office and a Director
of the Board Office. He is currently the Director of the Integrity Party
Office, the Director of the Party Committee Inspection Work Office,
the direct secretary of the Discipline Inspection Committee and the
Director of the Audit Centre of TEDA Holding, as well as a chairman
of the Supervisory Committee of Tianjin TEDA City Comprehensive
Development Investment Co., Ltd. (KEREH T LA HBIREEE
E R 7]), the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of Tianjin Teda
Company* (RKEZZERH B R A T]), and the supervisor of Tianjin
HONGDA Enterprises Management Company Limited (K/Z3AE D2
EEARAR).

Mr. Yang Zhengliang (2 R), aged 43, joined the Company in
August 2021. He is a Master’s degree holder, a senior accountant
and an internationally registered internal auditor (CIA), a member of
Certified Public Accountants of Australia, an accounting consultor of
Tianjin and a mentor-mentee of Master of Professional Accounting of
Tianjin University. He was a section officer, section head and middle
rank of Tianjin Steel Pipe Group Company Limited, the audit director
of Beijing Naiwei Technology Company Limited, the deputy director
of the investment department and the deputy general manager of the
investment development department of Tianjin Port (Group) Company
Limited. He is currently an executive director and vice general
manager of Tianjin Port Development Holdings Limited (stock code:
03382, Hong Kong Stock Exchange), a shareholder, and the chief
representative of Tianjin Representative Office.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yan Jun (B ), aged 49, joined the Company in June 2020. He
graduated from Jilin University of Finance and Economics (formerly
Changchun Tax College), with a bachelor’s degree in economics, and
is an international Certified Internal Auditor (“CIA”). He once served as
the head of the audit department of Ninetowns Internet Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (NASDAQ: Nine), the head of the audit department of
CAR Inc. and the senior audit director of Lashou Network Technology
Co., Ltd. M FPLEFMAE R A R]) etc. He currently serves as
the deputy general manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Staff Representative Supervisors

Mr. Huang Fei (E%), aged 37, joined the Company in April 2019
and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in June
2020. He graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
in 2009 majoring in accounting (international accounting) with a
bachelor’s degree in management. He is an assistant accountant and
human resources professional (second-level). He was a staff member
of the human resources department and the organization department
of the Party Committee of Tianjin TEDA Investment Holdings Co.,
Ltd. from 2009 to 2019. He was also assigned to work in Tianjin
Teda Urban Rail Investment and Development Co., Ltd.* (K/EZiE
BB EER AR AR]) from 2015 to 2018. Mr. Huang served
as a supervisor of Shanghai FSG (Tianjin) Human Resources Co.,
Ltd.* (E/BIMNR (RBE)A D EIRBR AT, the assistant of the asset
management department and deputy head of audit department of the
Company. He currently serves as the Secretary of the Integrated Party
Branch, the League branch secretary and the director of corporate
governance department of the Company, a director of Tianjin Yuan Da
Xian Dai Logistics Co., Ltd. and TEDA General Bonded Warehouse
Co., Ltd. and a supervisor of Tianjin TEDA Supply Chain Technology
Co., Ltd., all being subsidiaries of the Group.
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Ms. Lan Lingyan (B8 #E), aged 42, joined the Company in August
2006 and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in
June 2020. She graduated from Sichuan University in 2006 majoring
in engineering and technology with a bachelor’s degree in engineering.
She served as an administrative secretary, business manager of the
Party and mass work department, deputy secretary of the corporate
joint Party branch of the Company , the party-building and discipline
inspector and the deputy head of the department of Party-masses
work. She is currently the discipline officer of the Company’s labor
union and the head of the department of Party-masses work.

Ms. Wang Linlin (E##), aged 40, joined the Company in February
2010 and became a staff representative supervisor in June 2017.
She graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
in 2007 with a bachelor’'s degree (major in law); she also obtained
a bachelor’s degree (major in psychology) from the Central China
Normal University. Ms. Wang passed the National Judicial Exams of
the People’s Republic of China in 2009. She served as a specialist of
the risk management department, legal supervisor of the President’s
Office, the legal supervisor of the legal and risk control department and
the legal supervisor of the general office of the Company. She currently
serves as legal risk controller of legal internal audit department of the
Company.
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Weihong (#51#4L), aged 55, the secretary of general Party
and Chairman of the Company. He holds the overall operation of the
Company. He is also in charge of the general Party and the Board,
as well as the work of audit, legal and internal control compliance
management. His biography is set out in the sub-section headed
“Executive Directors” above.

Ms. Ma Xin (5 fiX), aged 40, the deputy secretary of general Party,
executive Director and general manager of the Company. She
holds overall operation of the Company. She is also in charge of
the work of capital operation, asset management, management of
affiliated enterprises and investment projects, performance appraisal,
informatization construction and safety production of the Company.
Her biography is set out in the sub-section headed “Executive
Directors” above.

Ms. Zhao Chunyan (&), aged 50, joined the Company in
November 2023, acting as the vice general manager of the Company
and holding a title of accountant. She graduated from Tianjin University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree, majoring in
accounting. She was a staff member, deputy director, director of
the finance department and chief financial officer of Tianjin Teda
Company* (KEZR 1D B R /A F]). She is currently served as the vice
general manager of the Company, in charge of finance and financing,
assisting the Chairman in managing audit and internal control and
compliance management, and assisting in informatization construction
management.

* For identification purposes only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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31/F Gloucester Tower
The Landmark
11 Pedder Street

HLB) B #7 st & ¥ % s A a4
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANJIN BINHAI TEDA LOGISTICS (GROUP) CORPORATION
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin Binhai
Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
126 to 287, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sections of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBETRE
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables

Refer to note 4.1(b) and note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had net trade, bills
and other receivables of approximately RMB482,087,000
(2022: approximately RMB776,927,000) and
aggregated provision for impairment of approximately
RMB298,993,000 (2022: approximately
RMB304,202,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 180 days (2022: 30 to
180 days). Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses (“ECL”). Receivables with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. ECL are also estimated by
grouping the remaining trade, bills and other receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its business
and its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the trade, bills and other receivables. The ECL
rates are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
trade, bills and other receivables.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade, bills and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

Our procedures in relation to ECL assessment on trade,
bills and other receivables included:

e Understanding the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

e  Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade, bills and other receivables as at 31
December 2023 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

* Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade, bills and other receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence,
understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records of
and other correspondence with the customers;
and

e Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade, bills
and other receivables and determine the impairment
provision to be supportable by available evidence.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation on the investment properties

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 31 December 2023, management has estimated
the fair value of the Group’s investment properties of
approximately RMB412,200,000 (2022: approximately
RMB408,500,000) with a net loss on fair value changes
of approximately RMB2,183,000 (2022: approximately
RMB4,400,000) was recognised in the consolidated
statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year ended 31 December 2023.
Independent external valuations in respect of all of the
portfolio of the investment properties in order to support
the management’s estimation.

The valuations are dependent on certain key
assumptions that require significant management
judgement, including reversionary yield and rental
income from future reversion leases in light of current
market condition.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation
of investment properties included:

e Evaluation of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

e Assessing the appropriateness of the
methodologies used and the key assumptions
based on our knowledge of the property industry
and using our valuation experts; and

e (Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

We found the valuation of investment properties were
supported by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the ®
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

FHEEEMRASTERENRE T
FAEtEt gt et MABEEENS
B o

HEERAFELLEGHERNR
L &R YIRBEMESHE
ZEE MESAFERERESFB
NBEBNEANTEE M. - e A8
BEYHEEENKELERNEL
BERRE - HEMRBB/SFEEKRD
FEE M - BRI M 2EZBENRE S
REEMEIBAHMBRERPH
HERE - HEBERESE - A3
MEEERIFBREER - MW
Ewm DERBEZBE HRE B A
BISHBEZEE - AT RERFE
HIEN AT EHEEEBEEFEL
%

HEAFHBERERNEBEI R
A BEERAR BEREEH
AR HTHREAEETH KRR
AR SHEIR o

REEEANERAXKIHNNE
BEHERTEMEENEZERE
INEHAHPTBEBRRERER - &
MAEEREZEANTR  EBMH
17 - BPIRBA B RAERAEE -

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other HMIEBEZZ S st (P 81E) F5ta0st
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant Z|#E - LR EREFTHIRFHET
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control ~ T/&# - BERMEFTBEPAERA
that we identify during our audit. Bf EL e (R EKBRFE ©
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We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai lp
Practising Certificate Number: PO7849

Hong Kong, 18 March 2024

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B RBETRE

BRTmEZZESELRH - HE R
NHaBMBELENERERERENR I
BN EBRAEEERR RS ERNE
VEREBRRMEMER - ARSHEE
BB T SR EX # 17 Bh 2K AR B A B 8645 e (40
A °

tREZZEQBABNERT  HMAEE
PRL =R U A MM & H M SRR NEF =
HEE  AmEKERETSE - ZMAE
B RETHAZFER - FRIDEERX
ERA R ARBEZSER - R
ERERT MREEFARERMORS
FEAXFREKNBEZRBBELN
NFRAE - RIRPIRE N EERSTER
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HEARB I ZBMBENETHEEER
ERfE 2 °
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HEFEZRS - P07849
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EHEERHAMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 20234 12 531 Hi1FF/Z

2023 2022
2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 ARBTT ARETR
(Restated)
(&=5)
Revenue WA 6 3,649,930 3,301,143
Cost of sales SHEMA (3,588,864)  (3,169,394)
Gross profit EF 61,066 131,749
Administrative expenses THRAX (52,436) (56,457)
Other gain and loss - net H bz M E51E — F 58 7 24,070 20,077
Loss on change in fair values WEMEAREBEEEN
of investment properties &8 15 (2,183) (4,400)
Reversal of/(impairment loss) of trade, 2 WA - EKRERE
bills and other receivables, net Ko HoAth FE WK IE B B,
ORfERSIE) %58 4.1b 5,209 (5,775)
Litigation settlement FATEE 38 - (38,632)
Operating profit EEREF 35,726 46,562
Finance costs LA 10 (21,339) (20,702)
Share of profit of investments accounted for A ARR
using the equity method JEMRIRE & T 11b 26,592 54,935
Profit before income tax BR TS B AT % Al 8 40,979 80,795
Income tax expenses FRiSTiR X 12 (4,633) (21,115)
Profit for the year FEEF 36,346 59,680
Other comprehensive loss Hit2HEEE
ltem that will not be reclassified subsequently T~ @EHHIEA
to profit or loss: BEmIER -
Equity instruments at fair value through other & @ E 2 EWAIZ AR
comprehensive income BEYENER TR (5,984) (2,510)
Total comprehensive income FE2EWBALLE
for the year 30,362 57,170

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S BEEREMEERAR
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

2023 2022

2023 F 2022 F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P aE ARBTRT ARETT

(Restated)
(&&E7))
Profit for the year attributable to: THEFEEFERF :
Owners of the Company PIN/NEIE Z =N 29,778 29,623
Non-controlling interests FEVERRHE = 6,568 30,057
36,346 59,680
Total comprehensive income TH&EFEEERE
attributable to: W AHBEE
Owners of the Company ZAN/NIEZ =N 23,794 27,113
Non-controlling interests eI IR R A 6,568 30,057
30,362 57,170
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BREFNARES)
- Basic and diluted —E AR R#EE 13 8 8
Dividends % B 29 7,086 10,629

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&MI s &Rk 5% & BB ISR A — 26
financial statements. 7

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION

AN b Q)
& Ot B B AR R 3R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 20234 12 531 Hi1FF/Z
As at
As at 31 December 1 January
R12A318 »1A18
2023 2022 2022
2023 F 2022 F 2022 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
&t AR¥T AREFL AR®EFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=5) (& E5I)
ASSETS &
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 14 197,862 219,024 241,496
Investment properties REN% 15 412,200 408,500 412,900
Amount due from joint venture EUE 2 hEHE 18 85,076 121,000 147,737
Investments accounted for using the RARREARNRE
equity method 11b 271,692 268,000 227,225
Equity instruments at fair value through BREME2ERAR
other comprehensive income AREESIRA
BaIA 11c 28,343 34,327 36,837
Deferred tax assets ERVBEE 28 652 737 591
995,825 1,051,588 1,066,786
Current assets RBEE
Inventories & 17 31,636 6 9
Trade, bills and other receivables ET 6 eER
EREER
Hito el s 18 397,011 655,927 528,933
Pledged bank deposits BERRITER 19 56,015 113,087 123,289
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEED 19 340,301 414,629 357,757
824,963 1,184,549 1,009,988
Total assets mEE 1,820,788 2,236,137 2,076,774
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Equity attributable to owners ANBEEAEGRER
of the Company
Share capital F AR 20 354,312 354,312 354,312
Other reserves HitE 21 98,187 100,756 98,224
Retained earnings REZF| 22 434,780 419,205 394,624
887,279 874,273 847,160
Non-controlling interests FERER 103,997 125,732 137,471
Total equity MRS 991,276 1,000,005 984,631
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION

BHM BRI R
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # %2 2023 F 12 4 31 HiF F/Z

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
R12A318 »1A18
2023 2022 2022
2023 F 2022 F 2022 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
&t AR¥T AREFL AR®EFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&=5) (#&=5)
LIABILITIES =X
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred income EEMA 26 3,979 4,191 4,402
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 11,797 33,348 52,491
Borrowings f&5 25 38,179 - -
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHBEERE 28 55,352 55,897 56,997
109,307 93,436 113,890
Current liabilities hBaE
Trade and other payables B REMERTE 23 341,319 568,758 591,981
Contract liabilities aHaE 24 39,971 264,964 106,937
Current income tax liabilities SHRGHAR 1,697 2,150 6,798
Borrowings RN 25 313,730 285,175 251,490
Lease liabilities HEAE 27 23,488 21,649 21,047
720,205 1,142,696 978,253
Total liabilities BeE 829,512 1,236,132 1,092,143
Total equity and liabilities BEZRER 1,820,788 2,236,137 2,076,774
Net current assets RBEETE 104,758 41,853 31,735
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 1,100,583 1,093,441 1,098,521

These consolidated financial statements were approved and #ZEAHMERRCKEHES S 2024
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2024 and F3 A18BH#b /& RRETIZ - WHMNUT

were signed on its behalf by: ATREEE -
Yang Weihong Ma Xin
Director Director

EE EE

4

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated & M i T X 2 F & S IS K A — 56
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EHERED R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 20234 12 531 Hi1FF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

LNGIE 2PN T
Share Other  Retained Non-
capital reserves earnings controlling Total
(Note 20)  (Note21)  (Note22)  Sub-total interests equity
REA  HittRE  RERF
(MizE20)  (BiEE21)  (BfEE22) #/it FERER HER

RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR

Balance at 31 December 72021 %12 31 BH)

2021 e 354,312 98,224 394,308 846,844 137,196 984,040
Effect of adoption of RABBR &R

amendments to IAS 12 F12H(BFIE)

(Note 2(d)) 2 F & (M2(d) - - 316 316 275 591

Balance at 1 January 2022 172202241 A 1HH)

(restated) s (EED)) 354,312 098,224 394,624 847,160 137,471 984,631
Profit for the year (restated) EE % HI(FE7]) - - 29,623 29,623 30,057 59,680
Other comprehensive loss ~ FEE 2 EEE

for the year - (2,510) - (2,510) - (2,510)
Total comprehensive FE2E(BR)/

(loss)/income for the year Ut \ 4258

(restated) (& E7) - (2,510) 29,623 27,113 30,057 57,170
Transfer to other reserves ~ EEZ H k& - 5,042 (6,042) - - -
Dividends paid to B RFFERER

non-controlling interests ~ JRITHIRLE. - - - - (41,796) (41,796)
Balance at 31 December 7220224 12 A 31 BHAY

2022 (restated) e (K E5) 354,312 100,756 419,205 874,273 125,732 1,000,005
Balance at 31 December 7220224 12 A 31 BHH)

2022 i 354,312 100,756 418,816 873,884 125,384 999,268
Effect of adoption of FRER &R

amendments to IAS 12 F12H(BIIA)

(Note 2(d)) 22 (ME2d) - - 389 389 348 737
Balance at R2023%1 A1 8H

1 January 2023 (restated) 4 84(KE7) 354,312 100,756 419,205 874,273 125,732 1,000,005
Profit for the year FERF - - 29,778 29,778 6,568 36,346
Other comprehensive loss ~ FEE 2 EEE

for the year - (5,984) - (5,984) - (5,984)
Total comprehensive FE2R(BR)/

(loss)/income for the year Yt A#2%8 - (5,984) 29,778 23,794 6,568 30,362
Transfer to other reserves ~ EREH kG - 3,415 (3,415) - - -
Dividends paid to ERIFERER KT

non-controlling interests M5 - - - - (28,303) (28,303)
Dividends recognised ERAEDKHRE

as distribution (Note 29) (BzE29) - - (10,788) (10,788) - (10,788)

Balance at 31 December #2023F 12831 BH
2023 3] 354,312 98,187 434,780 887,279 103,997 991,276

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B& M M 5T Ak Z E A M IS RE A — 31
financial statements. e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 20234 12 531 HiFF/Z

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P aE ARBTRT ARETT
Cash flows (used in)/generated from REER(FA) Fifg
operating activities RERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #iE(FTA) 88 e 31 (136,041) 107,191
Interest received B U F B 11,749 15,662
Interest paid EFIE (21,339) (20,702)
Income tax paid ERFTEE (5,546) (27,009)
Net cash (used in)/generated KEEE (FTA) T8
from operating activities IR FEE (151,177) 75,142
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHRESRE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EBERRITFITORLD 57,972 9,302
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E % - HE M & E (3,423) (14,756)
Addition of investment properties NEREMEHE (5,883) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEK&
plant and equipment REFTISRIR 399 442
Dividends income from equity instruments R :#& B H M2 @E KA
at fair value through other BAAEEYROER
comprehensive income TAMRKRBHKA 80 512
Dividends received from investments KAEZEARNKE
accounted for using the equity method Z B B 22,900 15,765
Net cash generated from investing activities & /EBFT15I8 & F 5 72,045 11,265
Cash flows from financing activities METBHRSRE
Proceeds from borrowings BB PTIS TR 375,843 344,585
Repayments of borrowings BEEN (309,109) (310,900)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEABZEENREA (22,839) (21,424)
Dividends paid to owners of the Company 2 AIZAAR &
A NIRRT S (10,788) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 [A) FE2 B A& 25 R 1~
A% B (28,303) (41,796)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEES S, (FTA)
financing activities e FE 4,804 (29,535)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEEYW
cash equivalents (R & hnFEE (74,328) 56,872
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1TEMEE R
ReFEY 414,629 857,757
Cash and cash equivalents N12A31BWERER
at 31 December HEeEEEY 340,301 414,629

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in provision of logistics and
supply chain solutions services and trading and related logistics
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was established as an investment holding
company in the PRC by its promoters, Tianjin Teda Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (RKIEREREZER AR A F) (“TEDA Holding”)
and Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area
State Asset Operation Company (KE&L B R THEER A E
E#&Z N 7)) (“TEDA Asset Company”) as a joint stock limited
company on 26 June 2006. Both TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset
Company are controlled by Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area Administrative Commission (“TEDA
Administrative Commission”).

Pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s overseas listed
foreign shares (“H shares”) on the Growth Enterprises Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the
Group in June 2006. The Company’s H shares were listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 30 April 2008.

On 18 November 2011, TEDA Holding entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Land Company Limited (“Chia
Tai Company”), while TEDA Asset Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company”).
Accordingly, TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset Company agreed
to transfer 28,344,960 (8% of ordinary shares) and 77,303,789
(21.82% of ordinary shares) domestic shares of the Company
to Chia Tai Company and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company
respectively. In 2012, the two aforementioned domestic share
transfers were approved by the relevant state-owned assets
supervision and administration authorities of the PRC. The
registration procedures of the related transfers have been
completed on 7 June 2013.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB HRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # % 20234 12 531 Hi1FF/Z
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2023, the Directors of the Company consider
TEDA Holding as the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The address of the registered office are principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 18 March 2024.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
For the propose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decision made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income and
investment properties that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

REEEE2)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of measurement (Continuead)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Group’s principal operations
are conducted in the PRC. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

2. RAEERER)

(b)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
(d) Application of new and amendments to International (d) FEFRFET R &8 5T B BR B 75 3R

2. RAEERER)

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

New and amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2023 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

IFRS 17 (including the June 2020 Insurance Contracts
and December 2021 Amendments to
IFRS 17)

R TSRS SRR 17 5% (ol:3=N0

(83520205 6 A & 2021 F 12 A
YRR RS 2ERIE 17 SEAERT)

HERA (BRI REER )

TG [ 38 ) 2L R 37 5T R A
5T BB 75 2 2 2B R

RAFE  AEEREA MY
HHREREEAERARE SR
EABEEREMILE 2023 F 1
A1Bsiz&RE 2 REBEF
[EHAR R ) A R BT AT R AE 18
2] 2 BURR B RS 5 2R

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

e RrERIE 85k (BT R) R EET WA

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction

Ra R ERIE 1255 (BT R) HE - HELNEE B BIRRRERE

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform-Pillar Two model Rules

e ERIE 125k (BT R) B B B — S — SOERR

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Practice Statement 2
e ET A RISE 1 5 N BPR B 75 v 5 22 R SETBEREE
BERREE 2R EFTA)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to IFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in those consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

REEEE2)

FE PR 7 BT R AR A& 5T B0 R Bt 75 3%

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.

(d) Application of new and amendments to International (d)

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments narrow the scope of the
recognition exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred
tax assets in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 Income
Taxes so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on
initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

In accordance with the transition provision:

()  the Group has applied the new amendments on
temporary differences for transactions related to leases
as at 1 January 2022;

(i)  the Group also, as at 1 January 2022, recognised a
deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and
a deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary difference associated with right-of-use-
assets and lease liabilities.

HERA (BRI REER )
(&)

HEAER 2 ERE 125
(IEET ) B8 — X ZEL A
EREEEEBELFIER
&
REBERAFETEREAZ
ZEFIR c ZE B AFEER
R ERFE12WAMEHE
15 R24ARBELEMRIBE B RE
EHIBEEENERAREEHE -
B A RV iR R
EEXRENEREMENY
Rt ZRERRZ S ©

RIBBIR X

() ANEEER2022F1 A1
HYHEBEEFHANZHH
TR ERERMEEIAN

(i) AEEITR2022%F1 A1
A REEELREESR
&R 2 P AT 40 R M e
R R R ZE R FERR IR I
HEE(RGE HIE A A
FA B B 22 RE AN 2 FERR TR
S ) IR B 8 ) NI RE A IR
BfE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO BRRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{% 2023 F 12 A 31 H 1 F/E

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2.

(d) Application of new and amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Continued)

The effects of the changes in accounting policies as a
result of application of amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction on the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

|||F L4 E #E (Zt

(d)

FE PR 7 BT R AR A& 5T B0 R Bt 75 3%
HERA (BRI REER )
(&)

H B R 2 5 R E 12955
(/ézﬁfﬁ)ﬁﬂi”—x BELHE
EREREHRELFH B Z
Z(E)

F e A Bl & 5 R 1258
(BEIA)RE—RFEANE
ElBERREZELHRASH
Ve BRESHEHERR
H2mBEARNZENT ¢

BLZ2023F 12 A31 BIEFE

Amendments
to IAS 12 Total

B g ERIE
12355 (18RI &) e
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBT T

Impact on profit/(oss) for the year ffi wmH (BB 2
Increase in income tax expense FT1S 8 F 248 AN (85) (85)
Net decrease in profit/(loss) for the year FEmN, (B8 )R F58 (85) (85)
Decrease in profit/(loss) for the year THEHEIEFEE T,

attributable to: (B8R -
Owners of the Company ZN/NECTE Z= N (47) (47)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR = (38) (38)
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Application of new and amendments to International

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

2.

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BB 7)

(d) FERFTR] R AIEET B B 5 5R

EEA(TERMBEREER])
(%)
H BB 2 a1 R FE 125
(BETA)HE— X ZELNE
ER BB FEE R %
Z(E)

HE2022F 12 A31 BILEE

Amendments
to IAS 12 Total
PRE RS
12 5% (IBET ) HBET
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥EFTT AREFTT
Impact on profit/(loss) for the year HEEHMN,/(BR)FE
Decrease in income tax expense Frig 8 M OB 146 146
Net increase in profit/(loss) for the year FEHEF,(E518) 1L INF5E 146 146
Increase in profit/(loss) for the year THNEHEIEFE T,
attributable to: (BE)IEmM -
Owners of the Company KARHAA 73 73
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 73 73
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Application of new and amendments to International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction (Continued)

The effects of the changes in accounting policies as a
result of application of amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction on the consolidated statement of financial
position at the end of the immediately preceding financial
year, i.e. 31 December 2022 and the beginning of the
comparative period, i.e. 1 January 2022, are as follows:

2. RERER)

(d)

FE PR 7 BT R AR A& 5T B0 R Bt 75 3%
HERA (BRI REER )
(%)

H BB 2 a1 R FE 125
(BETA)HE— X ZELNE
ER BB FEE R %
Z(#7)

EHEABERSERFE 125
(BEIR)HE—RFEEME
ERBEEECELERIBEEN
VEERTERRE S EREVRE
€ # & H(BN20224F 12 A 31
B ) K& kb & HA 7 56 (B 2022
F1A1B)MEHTBIRAEK
MEEWT

31/12/2022

Originally 31/12/2022
stated Adjustments Restated
2022 F 2022 &
12A31H 12A381H
NHES FE BEF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR¥TR AR%®Tx
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE — 737 737
Total non-current assets IR EELTE 1,050,851 737 1,051,588
Total assets BEE 2,235,400 737 2,236,137
Retained earnings RE&F 418,816 389 419,205

Equity attributable to owners AR B A AR
of the Company 873,884 389 874,273
Non-controlling interests FEE A 2 125,384 348 125,732
Total equity BT 999,268 737 1,000,005
Total equity and liabilities EHERNEE 2,235,400 737 2,236,137

Total assets less current BREERTEBAEE

liabilities 1,092,704 737 1,093,441
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Application of new and amendments to International

Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

2. WREBEE)

(d)

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred
Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction (Continued)

P& PR # R] e AR 48 BT Bl B B A 4R

EEA(TERMBEREER])

(%)

H BB 2 a1 R FE 125
(BETA)HE— X ZELNE
ER BB FEE R %
Z(#&)

01/01/2022
Originally 01/01/2022
stated  Adjustments Restated
2022 F 2022
1A1H 1A1H
B2 FEE KEE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFTT AREFTIT AR%®ETET
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = — 591 591
Total non-current assets JEMBNEELRE 1,066,195 591 1,066,786
Total assets BEE 2,076,183 591 2,076,774
Retained earnings RE AT 394,308 316 394,624
Equity attributable to owners KRR E#AE ARE(GEZ
of the Company 846,844 316 847,160
Non-controlling interests SRR = 137,196 275 137,471
Total equity B 984,040 591 984,631
Total equity and liabilities HERRAE 2,076,183 591 2,076,774
Total assets less current BEERREBEE
liabilities 1,097,930 591 1,098,521
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2. REEBREZ)

(d) Application of new and amendments to International (d)
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to IFRS Standards that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

FE PR 7 BT R AR A& 5T B0 R Bt 75 3%
HERA (BRI REER )
(&)

E B8 15 K X Z BB B 7
HEERNEFT A

AEBEY EIRATEAATER
B R R #T ] MARERT
BIR B B E 2R

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture!

IR B 75 3 5 M B S8 10 9% K REERHBENRREEARIHEELEIEE"
BIPR & 5T 4RI 5 28 5% (185 A°)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

IR B 5 3 5 M B 28 16 9% (I&RT A) ERHLZHEERE?

Amendment to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?
BIR & Et RIS 1 5 (18ETAN) BESBRREIERE?

Amendment to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants?

BIFR 5 2RI 1 58 (B35 A%) MR ERB A G

Amendment to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements?

BIFR &5t ERIE 7 5% & HER RN E ZHE?
BB B 75 R 5 M RN S 7 5K (&R 4)

Amendment to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

BIPR & 5t 2RI 58 21 5% (BT ) R Z A R

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2025.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all other amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by
Group entities.

® has power over the investee;

® s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

3.

BABFHRER
REZSEHMBHRRAEANE
SEERREINWT - RIESFIHE
B HEBRRERE2HMERFEE
BEM -

(a) EHEE
TXAEEABRERDRE R
BHREA T EHHAME BE
B uiE>2BEEEREHE
ﬁﬁ o

o AIHRBEURITEREN

s ARAFELELREHR
HY S 75 P15 0 R & [0 )
RS HER © K&

o BEENEITEEENMF
E2EER -

WEEERIFTRBR LA =18
BHEEPA —HKALEHR
B AKRESEHAEHESE
BEFREYHR -

HARBRNEEHRNRRRE
REMEARZH  BER2RER
RUB T AREEERENAE
THEZEREHRNBEER
B AREENHREHRER
B EHEARERRE Y
SMEEERTRARTERE
N AEEEEHAERBE
BERER  EREHE:

o AKAEEFERERNBE
SR EMICEREE A
BEREEMNRE R D
e

s AKE HHEREERH
ASE A AT HAREE

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary. Profit or loss and each
component of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

EABHRER (2)

(a)

(b)

BHEE(E)

A 2 B 9 SE 12 B b 2 B2 K
SEEEFHREEN IR
ﬁﬁﬁﬁé\ t5 BRI AT B R
CEEBAAEREBER
}z:thﬁIJ“ =Ll = NG obe

REBEAARAEAT
BEARNNAREEHELE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or joint venture may be
impaired. When an objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

EABHRER (2)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Group’s senior management that
makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(d)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither
planned nor likely to occur, which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s
interests in associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services, or for administrative purposes (other than
construction in progress) are stated at in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when

the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis. The depreciation rate per annum is as

follows:

Buildings

Machinery

Furniture and office equipment
Motor vehicles

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is

greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(e)

(f

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment
less any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time
the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment property (Continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

3.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
“other gain and loss — net”.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

* the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

* on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

® it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the other
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other gain and loss — net” line
item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO BRRRME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #{% 2023 F 12 A 31 H 1 F/E

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the other
gain and loss — net line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9 (including trade, bills and other receivables, amount
due from joint venture, pledged banks deposits and cash
and cash equivalents). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

* significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties; or

()  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forwardlooking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables, other receivables
and prepayments are considered on a collective basis
taking into consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when formulating
the grouping:

e Past-due status;

*  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e  External credit ratings (where available).

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A moaodification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continueq)

(h)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received, and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 percent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that
has been written off.

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal amount
indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payments when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contract liabilities
are measured initially at their fair values. It is subsequently
measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and

* the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including borrowings, lease liabilities, and
trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(i)

)

Provision (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

Inventories

Inventories which consist of cargos are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories
are is determined using on a first-in-first out method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents presented on the consolidated
statement of financial position include:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management. Such
overdrafts are presented as short-term borrowings in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

0

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(m) Borrowing costs

(n)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()  Aperson, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@ has control or joint control over the Group;

(b) has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

3.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(n) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of the group of which the other entity is
a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(n) Related parties (Continued)

(@ A person identified in (i) (a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(h)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or he influence
by, that person in their dealing with the and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(o) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;

and

(c) dependants of the person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(Continued)

EABHRER (2)

(o) Taxation (o) HiE

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
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Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable — BT R FE E%%%ﬁﬁ%igﬁ
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally MR - MRl S AT B A Al

recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
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liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. SEASHRER %)

(Continued)
BWE (&)

(o) Taxation (Continued) (o)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land,

M EREVMENELERIBM
Bl f‘JFHQﬁF@ﬁ%JQEJFEE’]
WEMF 2 REBEDRE A
HE 2B DE - ﬁ??ﬁ%ﬁj“?ﬁ
HEBAIRIN - BEIREWEA T
TERZEBRAN(HEBKE
FEBER M A A HE
Tﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁ@ BB KB A
EMZE)FERN FRRRE

which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through %Bi HEED - KA % W+ B
sale. N E—EHRHJAEBHESD
g e o

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. The Group recognises a deferred tax asset
related to lease liabilities to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary difference can be utilised and a deferred tax
liability for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X #& /&2 Z Y&

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises
from the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
are dealt with as payment to defined contribution plan which
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to contribution.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(q) Government grants (Continued)

()

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and transferred
to profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Such grants are presented under other gain and
loss - net.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

()

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. A contract asset
and a contract liability relating to a contract are accounted
for an presented on a net basis.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(Continued)

()

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of raw materials is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being at
the point the products are delivered to the customer
and the customer has accepted the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of discounts,
returns and value added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered and the customers accept the products,
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(Continued)

(r) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of services

Revenue from rendering of logistics services for
finished vehicles, supply chain management for
automobile components and parts, warehousing
services and related logistics services for steel trading
are recognised upon the completion of services.

For sales of services, revenue is recognised at point
in time in accounting period in which the services
rendered, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction and assessed on the basis of actual
services provided.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

3.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

()

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (Continued)

(iv) Government grants

(v)

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are initially recognised
as deferred income and subsequently recognised
in profit or loss upon on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Dividends income from equity instruments

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed equity investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #Z 20234 12 A 31 HIFF/ZE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand- alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components, including contract
for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2023 # 2 20234 12 431 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles and properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight- line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

® any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(Continued)

(s)

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/& /R E Y REBERMHBRA A

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties